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ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 10-27)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for
March 29, 2010, at the Mitchell Pauole Center is now in session. At this time, I'd
like to yield the floor to your Council Member, our Council Chair Danny Mateo
to introduce the Members as well as Staff that is supporting the Budget and
Finance Committee as we go throughout the various communities in Maui
County. Chairman.
MS. ALCON: . . .(inaudible). . .
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Oh.
MS. ALCON: Molokai bread.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Aloha, Molokai, yeah, and.. .
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: . . .thank you all for coming out and joining us this evening.
What you have to say is important to us. So we're anxious to hear from the
Molokai community With us this evening, we have the representative from the
Wailuku District, and you all know him, this is Michael Victorino.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: From the East Maui area, from the Hana District, we have
Member Bill Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: From the island of Lanai, we have the island representative
Sol Kaho' ohalahala.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: From the Upcountry Maui District, with us this evening
Gladys Baisa.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
VICE CHAIR MATEO: From the South Maui District, we have Wayne Nishiki.
-

AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: From the Makawao-Paia-Haiku area, we have Councilmember
and Vice-Chair of the Maui County Council, Michael Molina.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And, of course, the one that everybody wants to get to know,
the "candy man", the "sugar man"
ALL: . . . (chuckle).. .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: . . .he is the Chairman of the Budget and Finance Committee,
his district is Kahului. Please welcome Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: With us this evening are also our Staff members. We have our,
our Legal Analyst, our attorney, Carla Nakata as well as our Secretary
Tammy. . .Frias.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And Molokai, we await, we await to hear from all of you.
Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman Mateo. I do have some senior moments
myself. But before we take public testimony, I have a note here, announcements
and reminders. At this time, the Chair would like to request that all of you with
cell phones or pagers, if you can turn it off or put it on the silent mode. The
second thing is that I'm sure all of you know where the restrooms are located, it's
to the rear of this building. . .near the swimming pool, across the swimming pool.
Let's see. . .for those of you that are providing public testimony, please provide us
with your name, the organization that you represent, and the Chair will give you
three minutes to provide you your, with your testimony, with one minute to
conclude. Audience, please respect each testifier; refrain from applause, cheers,
and jeers. And the last thing is once the meeting is completed, if you could help
the Committee in regards to removing rubbish before leaving the facility. So
everybody get one job to do.
So with that, again, this is your opportunity to provide your public testimony
regarding the Mayor's Fiscal Year 2011 Proposed Budget. It is our intent to hear
from you folks, hear on the issues that you have, and take some of those issues
into consideration when we create the Budget for the County of Maui. If you
don't know, the Mayor does present a proposed Budget to the Council and we, the
Council, need to create the Budget for the County of Maui.
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So with that, we'll go ahead with public testimony. The first person to sign up for
public testimony, Lyle Likua. If you can come up forward, there's a microphone
here, speak directly into the mic.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MS. BROWN: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll, I'll take the emergency guys first.
MR. LIKUA: Aloha, everybody. My name is Lyle Likua and.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You gotta lift the mic, please. Lift up the mic, we cannot
hear.
MR. LIKUA: Okay. And I was supposed to say where, who I work for? No, I don't
know what was the. . .who I represent or what am I representing? Oh, I'm
standing for, representing for the helicopter. And I'm for it and here to pro..., to
acknowledge that, you know, continue the funding for it. I've had experience
with patients, many patients, injured patients that needed the, the process of
getting them off the island in time for emergencies. And not only am I for it, but
I'm a witness to working there, 'cause I work on the ambulance here on Molokai
for the last 30 years. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much.
MR. LIKUA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Timothy Musick.
MR. MUSICK: Good evening. My name's Tim Musick. I've been a paramedic on
Molokai for 20 years. I've seen the helicopter in action, I've seen it save lives.
This community, I believe, needs this helicopter. And. . .I was working when we
had the first two cases here in Molokai. One was a shark bite and the other was
two burn patients on the same weekend. So things can happen and can happen
quickly. And that's about all I have to say, other than thank you for your time and
consideration. I know you guys have hard decisions to make and we appreciate
that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again. Elithe Pladera.
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MS. PLADERA: Aloha, Council Members. My name's Elithe Pladera. I work for
American Medical Response and I've been doing this for about 14 years. We, we
testified and wrote letters in the beginning to get this medevac off the road, and
it's done a lot to save people's lives. I've worked in the far districts, Hana as well
as Lahaina, Napili side, and I'm here on Molokai now and I can see that it does
make a difference. We see people around in the communities that survive
because of this helicopter, it's very important. My, my husband. . .he works in
Hana. I commute every week to Molokai and my kids are all in sports, so they
travel quite a lot. And I know that all of you that have families, friends that
travel. . .it, it makes a difference to know that there's that security there as a
backup, yeah, for medevac and emergency situations. It does make a difference.
And if you can please support this, the funding to go through, we'd really
appreciate it. And this is for future generations to come, too. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Excuse me. We do have a question for you.
Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Since you mentioned Hana, I gotta ask you
questions. . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. PLADERA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No, but are all the ambulance crews on Molokai
trained to also be on the helicopter?
MS. PLADERA: We have what they call. . .medevac, helicopter training for people that
are interested in that, to get the extra training. It's not mandated for them to do it.
Anybody that's interested, there, they make it available for all medics to take the
training.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So the helicopter is dispatched out of Maui? Is that
correct?
MS. PLADERA: Yeah, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So does it usually come with a crew on it of
EMTs and paramedics and so forth?
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MS. PLADERA: Yes. Yes, and they are fully trained as well as the backup crew that
comes out of Wailea. So they are fully trained.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo for your testimony and your
presence this evening. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Members? Seeing none,
thank you again.
MS. PLADERA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Gladys Brown.
MS. BROWN: Good evening, Chairman. I'm Gladys Brown and I'm representing
myself. And I came tonight because I was going to solicit your help. You've
done help for MEO all these years and I wanted you to continue with it. And
there was a rumor that you might farm some of the jobs out to a cheaper carrier,
and I feel very badly because, you know, the MEO staff has really worked hard
with the funds they've had all these years to do whatever they can for Molokai.
And all the people that are here I'm sure can attest to that. That's why they're
here because the MEO is doing a very good job. And the second thing I want to
talk about is you're trying to increase the fare for people who ride on the bus.
Well, for the elderly citizens and the child..., youth, they cannot pay the amount.
If they were to pay 30 or $40 a month to ride the bus, which they need, it would
be a hardship, especially for a family that has about five children all participating
in different kinds of sports. And so I'd like you to do something else. Maybe
what you can do, what the MEO does. They give you a little pass and when you
ride on the bus, you show your pass and then they allow you to ride on free. And
then that those that don't show the pass, charge them $5.
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. BROWN: Because I don't think the elderly people, especially those with
wheelchairs, and those youth that attend all the sports activities can afford to pay
anything. I think that's what you're here for. You're here to help Molokai. And
the people of Molokai you need to help are the seniors and the youth especially.
So, I'd like you to take those things into consideration. I haven't read the entire
budget, I didn't come early enough, but I'd like to know that when you make a
decision, please leave MEO alone because I think they're doing fine and they're
trying their very best to help Molokai. And.. .
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AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
MS. BROWN: . . .and the second people that I want to talk about is the Kuhao Center.
You know, in the times that they've been on Molokai they have helped so many
people get jobs, and I think that's one of the things that you should work on
instead of cutting out money from people. Make more jobs for people because
the people want to work. They don't want to just be without a job. So they, the
Kuhao Center does a very good job in training the people so that they when they
get a job, they do a tenific. . .job of it. And I'd like to congratulate
Annette Ahakuelo for the work she's done with her staff. She really does a good
job. Give her a big hand.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
MS. BROWN: And lastly, I wanted to tell you please, try not to take too many things
away from Molokai.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. BROWN: We really need it. And if you want Molokai to survive, you've got to
help the people. So try not to take anything away from them and try to see if you
can maybe give us something extra. . . . (chuckle).. .
AUDIENCE: . . .(laughter). . .
MS. BROWN: I really feel that you hear and you've spoken on behalf of Molokai many
times, put your money where your mouth is.
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. BROWN: So with that, I'd like to say thank you for coming and please keep
Molokai Molokai. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Gladys. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none-MS. BROWN: Any questions?
AUDIENCE: . . .(laughter). . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, but we'll take up your recommendation, $5 a drop for
riding the bus without a pass. Next testifier is Barbara Haliniak, followed by
Zelda Kapuni-Madsen.
MS. HALINIAK: Aloha, Council Members. Thank you for being on Molokai. My
name is Barbara Haliniak and I'm testifying as the President of the Molokai
Chamber Foundation, as a Board Member both of the Maui Economic
Development Board and Maui Economic Opportunity. I'm going to read my
speech because I timed myself, so it's supposed to be only three minutes.
I would like to thank you, Members of the Council, and especially our Council
Chair Danny Mateo--Danny, did you hear that?-AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. HALINIAK: --who have continued to support our efforts to facilitate the many
projects that have resulted in positive outcomes. Here's what you have made a
difference on.
In education: We have an Environmental and Spatial Technology (EAST)
program in the Middle School (which is only, which is one of only two schools in
the State that have that), and Molokai School (which is 1 of 13 high schools in the
State) with both Immersion and English speaking students. Over $65,000 in
equipment (hardware and software) has been given to the schools.
In the community building: The annual Christmas Light Parade and ho' olaule' a
attracts approximately 1,800 people to Kaunakakai town. These two events
provide opportunities for businesses to increase sales, fundraisers for nonprofits,
and also promotes a happy well-being environment. This past December we
distributed 960 bags of rice (one per family) donated by the Maui Hotel &
Lodging Association.
The annual Senior Dinner/Dance this past December, attendance was well over
300 seniors ages 60 and over. This event is to honor and thank our kupunas as
contributing members of our community
Again, we thank you for supporting these projects that help to keep our students
globally competitive and promote a healthy and strong community And we ask
your continued support to our organizations and partners.
On another note, I would like to testify for the need of an emergency medical
helicopter funding. Although the Mayor has omitted this funding in her budget,
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we ask the Council to consider this urgent need for Molokai, and the fact that the
value of a life outweighs the cost of this services should be taken into
consideration.
MEO transportation: As you know, MEO transportation is vital to this
community With the adverse economic climate, especially on Molokai, we
cannot afford to get any cutbacks in funding for this needed service, let alone
paying the $1 a ride fee.
And lastly, our water and sewage rates. When a water bill shows that the sewage
charge exceeds the water rates, then something is definitely wrong. We don't
want an increase in sewer rates, instead we ask for an audit of the Department of
Environmental Management, Waste..., Wastewater Reclamation Division, and to
show you that it's ridiculous. In fact I just got my water bill this month-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. HALINIAK: --and it's $85 and sewage is 112 bucks. So, I have a copy of last
month's bill and I ask you to look at it closely, and it's not the citizens that should
pay the, the sewage rate. It's really check the Department out. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Barbara. Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. The next testifier is Zelda Kapuni-Madsen, followed by
Joan Reed.
MS. KAPUNI-MADSEN: I'm here to testify. We ride, my family utilizes the bus
usually the whole week to go to the hospital, to come shopping, and we can't
afford for, to pay for. . .to ride the bus. And we ride it like everyday to go
hospital, to go shopping, go the other end of the island. So, that's all I have to
say.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If you can get closer to your mic, dear, you might lift it
up. . .because we can't hear you. Thank you. I wanted to ask you, you know,
when this was being discussed the other day we were at a meeting and I was
mentioning about the dollar, and somebody said to me, oh, it's only a dollar, it's
not a big deal. And I said, you know, it may not be a big deal to a person who has
the money, but to people that are living on a very small income, a dollar matters.
I think that's what you're trying to tell us.
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MS. KAPUNI-MADSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How big is your family?
MS. KAPUNI-MADSEN: Seven.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Seven?
MS. KAPUNI-MADSEN: Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So if seven of you ride the bus and you each have to pay
a dollar going and a dollar coming, that's $14 every time you go as a family.
And, you know, that can mount up really fast if you're on a small income or
unemployment or, you know, just making, making ends meet. So thank you
because it's important we hear from people like you, the impact of doing
something like this. Thank you.
MS. KAPUNI-MADSEN: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier is Joan Reed, followed by
Chas Kaliipii [sic].
MS. REED: Hi, I'm Joan Reed. I ride the bus four, five times a week. I'd be wearing
out a lot of shoes. . . (chuckle). . .if I didn't get to ride that bus. It really means a
lot. I can't afford a dollar each ride, it's impossible. I have this letter from
somebody else who rides the bus.
To whom it may concern: My name is Jennifer Lynn Carver. I'm a community
member from Molokai that lives about 30 minutes from town of Kaunakakai. I
use the MEO two days a week for doctor appointments, school appointments, and
shopping for groceries. These funding cuts that are being proposed could impact
the lives of the disabled very significantly. I currently have no other way to
travel, except through MEO buses. It has helped me to be able to travel more
independently. I would also like to mention that I am totally blind from birth. I
would like to see the service offered three days a week instead of the current two
days a week Without this service, the disabled would not be able to be
independent and live independent lives. Please consider the travel needs of
Molokai's disabled people when making these decisions. Sincerely,
Jennifer Carver.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much. Chas Keliikipi, followed by Juditha Gardner.
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MR. KELIIKIPI: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Charlie Keliikipi. I'm a retiree
living here. The transportation services is an important part of our lives for us to
get from town to the east end. I'm also a dialysis patient, so I need their services
three times a week. And I would also like to echo support for those who preceded
me, especially for the medevac. I've had to ride one of those once and a few, few
years ago and, you know, it's really a lifesaver and there's a great need for it here,
especially with the limited services at the hospital. And like was mentioned
earlier about the fees for riding, I, I would agree that for some families they
would, it would be a burden, especially with a lot of little children, and besides
school and sports I think that can really add up. And whatever you can do to help
us would be greatly appreciated. You know if, if there's a place to cut, I might
suggest you look at the Parks and Recreation. At times we pass One Alii say after
9 o'clock, we come back at 1 o'clock, all the lights are running full blast. We
coming down 5:00 in the morning when I come down for dialysis, the lights, all
the lights on full blast. I, I inquired why all those lights are on and they said, well,
it's for security for campers. I can see some light, but not all the lights that they
have. And I think that could be a place we could save some money and apply it to
MEO. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much. Judi..., Judith [sic] Gardner, followed by
Anthony Spearman.
MS. GARDNER: How do you do? I'm glad to see all of you here this evening. I am
Juditha Gardner, a client of MEO. I was asked by Debra Spencer, the driver
supervisor for MEO. I'm here tonight to represent Home Pumehana and those
disabled persons that aren't able to come here and speak for themselves. We need
the MEO bus to take us to shopping, to doctor appointments. . .shopping. Many
of us have no car. And. . .I call my carrier who, about two weeks ahead of time,
and they. . .and send a manifest to MEO, and they're always there to pick me up
to my appointment. And I'm so glad to see them because I've waited so long to
go for my eyeglasses, and I'm waiting for my eyeglasses. Tony said he's mailing
`em today, so I have to use this to read. But we hope that you can help us and
keep things as they are, and many of us are on a fixed income. We, I just
wouldn't have the money to, to pay for that. We're, we're spoiled, I know, but
we're used to it and we'd like to keep it as it is because it's very, very necessary.
I hope you understand and I appreciate talking here tonight. Thank you so much.
Bye-bye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Anthony Spearman, followed by Melvin Pen-ells.
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MR. SPEARMAN: Hello, my name's Anthony Spearman and I just want to testify on
the, just the MEO bus. It's really difficult getting around on Molokai, and the bus
provides a, a needed service and raising the fee. . .I can't afford, I have no job,
and it'd be really hard to, to come up with any money to be able to do that. Plus
all the other services that you're planning on cutting, people with jobs, the few
jobs that are on Molokai, then what would they do? It's already bad enough as it
is. So, I really think that you should think about the cuts and stuff and realize that
Molokai is in a special category over here and. . .we need help. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again for being here. Melvin Perrells. . .followed by Connie Fleenor.
MR. PERRELLS: Hello, I'm Melvin Pen ells. To start off, I'm taking this class to
startup a business, and one of the subjects in here states that the boss or the owner
gets paid last. Okay. This book has been sanctioned by the Mayor of Maui. Now
what I've read in the proposal is all these cuttings for the handicap and the senior
citizens. Well, the senior citizens have already paid for this services. To cut it
out is like steeling from them. So my suggestion here is instead of cutting the few
privileges we have on Molokai, why don't the government start cutting their
paychecks. . .
-

AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. PERRELLS: . . .and not ask us who have very little to start off with to pay more?
`Cause as it stands right now our gasoline price is over $4.40 a gallon. We can't
afford to drive cars very far. We can't afford the extra money that we're going to
have to pay, if this bill goes through, that we have to pay a dollar a way.
Primarily what we need, if you guys really want to cut the budget, start cutting
some paychecks--yours. Don't tell us to pay more when we cannot pay more. So
this is my whole idea about my testimony here. We, the people on Molokai, we
hardly have any jobs. This is a very financially depressed island. Don't ask us to
pay more. Why don't you guys give up some of what you guys have? Thank
you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Connie Fleenor, followed by Rocky Hill.
MS. FLEENOR: Aloha. I may be the newest person on Molokai, I'm not sure, but I just
arrived a couple of weeks ago and I already depend on this bus. My son has lived
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here for a couple of years and he's disabled, he depends on this bus to get to the
store, to get his food, to the doctors. This is. . .your island is a gem, keep it
polished, whatever you have to do. I come from Key West. Now that was a very
big issue with us on, on that island. You keep this bus running for these people,
whatever you have to do. For the disabled, you know, you can list them, have
them show a card, and let them ride. And the ones that aren't disabled, the ones
that have jobs and they have, you know, their money is there, they can afford 50
cents, a dollar, something, and the donation box, you know. . .when you got it,
give it. But keep this island polished however you have to, grab funding. This is
a preservation of this island, and I feel honored to stand on this land of yours.
And I, I can't stress enough, whatever it is you have to do to keep it going, keep it
going and don't let it change and don't let it be plowed over. And I agree with
every one of you all.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none. . . --(change of tape, start 1b)-- . . .before Mr. Hill gives his testimony, the
Chair would like to make a comment. This morning in the WAM Committee,
that's the money committee for the Senate, they decided to take away from the
counties, four counties, Maui, Kauai, Big Island as well as City and County of
Honolulu, 50 percent of our Transient Accommodation Tax. What it means to
Maui is $8 million. So what I want to encourage all of you to call your State
representatives, State senators, make sure that, that bill doesn't go any further
than what it is today. So we need your support in, in keeping our Transient
Accommodation Tax which equals to $17.5 million for the County of Maui. So
right now the Senate money committee, which is the WAM, is looking at
reducing that to 50 percent. So we're looking at $8.2 1/2 million. So we
encourage you to call your legislators, support us in trying to keep our share of the
Transient Accommodation Tax. So, thank you. Rocky Hill.
MR. HILL: Aloha and thank you. My name is Rocky Hill and thank you for being here.
I know your job is tough. The money trickles down and, and it's tough to decide
where it goes to when there's so many needs. I volunteer for the Humane Society
and I specialize in catching cats that have escaped that are drugged up. So. . .but I
can tell you that, that they do an absolute miraculous job over there with very,
very little. Dr. Eileen and Sister Ardis and Tessa, and I just want to thank them
and also thank you for your support continuing of the Humane Society and, and
doing so much with so little. If so. . .if, if the people on the mainland could see
the miracles that they perform here, they would be absolutely amazed with so,
with so little. And thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again. Rosita Esplanada, followed by Lillie Spearman.
MS. ESPLANADA: Hi, good evening. I'm Rosita Esplanada. I would like to share, I
would like to share my story that I have been a participant in the assisted program.
To me this is excellent program because I retired from this program and it
provides a big help for me and for my family as well. And furthermore, in my
workplace I have lots of family, their children who are left behind in their reading.
I help them, help them provide the reading skills so they were able to promote
into the next grade level. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mrs. Esplanida, excuse me, Esplanada. . .what,
what organization you represent?
MS. ESPLANADA: The assisted program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Assisted program?
MS. ESPLANADA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Assisted Living Program?
MS. ESPLANADA: Assisted program for the senior citizen.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. ESPLANADA: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You had any questions? Lillie Spearman, followed by
Solana Adachi.
MS. SPEARMAN: Good, good afternoon. . .evening. I'm Lillie Spearman and I'm
93 years old, and I don't have any way to travel. So, I would love to keep the
buses going, and that's the only way I have to travel, especially to the doctors.
So, thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you for being here tonight.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Solana Adachi, followed by Scotty Schaefer.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 29, 2010 (Molokai District)

MS. ADACHI: Hi. I'm with the Head Start. Six to seven years ago, my children
attended MEO Head Start. My husband and I were able to work while our
children received an affordable early childhood education. And when I say
affordable, I mean no cost, no charge, everything was provided with no
obligations to parents. I had many goals, a few of them was to work, go back to
school and become independent. The best opportunity from MEO Head Start was
one day when I was taking my son to school, I seen an employment opportunity
which became my lifetime career. So MEO, MEO Head Start gave me a new
path to a better life. I encourage the County to continue funding to provide future
parents the same opportunity that I received, and that is for the children to get the
best care, the best education while parents can make their family life better. So
currently, I am a past parent and I am a teacher aide at, for the Head Start. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Scotty Schaefer, followed by Joe Childs.
MR. SCHAEFER: I'm actually here to testify on behalf of my wife who's sick, and she
writes this and I'll turn it into Ella when we pau.
Aloha, Members of the Maui County Council. My name is Reverend
Lynette Schaefer.

So, obviously, I'm reading this.
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. SCHAEFER: . . . (chuckle). . . I can't fool you guys.
I have been an Episcopal priest on Molokai for over 30 years. I'm also married
to the man who is reading my letter.

AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. SCHAEFER: And he is really handsome--oh, wait, no I put that in.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. SCHAEFER: She didn't put that part in. . . .(laughter). . .
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I'm very sorry that I'm too sick to testify in person to support the emergency
medevac helicopter. I hope this letter will help you fund this needed service. In a
time span of less than 12 weeks, 4 members of our congregation or their
immediate families had heir lives saved by this helicopter. When you do the math
and realize that our church has less than 80 members, you will see how deep of
an impact this service made on us. If you ask the audience here tonight to stand if
they had a family member or a close friend who's also been on the medevac, you
would find it almost to be 100 percent. You see, we cannot drive to critical care.
We're dependent on prompt service when our people are seriously hurt or sick
And I've never seen an airplane land next to a fishpond or up in the forest. I've
heard too many stories and counseled too many grieving family members who
watched helplessly as their loved ones died, needlessly, because they had to wait;
and recently about a stroke victim whose life will never be the same because the
ticking clock stopped before he could be transported. I haven't heard of the death
and suffering from my husband or his partners. The HIPAA laws bind them and
they take patient confidentiality seriously.
She does not know what I do. She finds out about this--oh, she'll talk about that
later.
Because they have experienced so much, if they could speak freely, it would
probably be more than any of us would want to hear. I hear these stories because
I live on Molokai, because I'm a mother, and a grandmother-So definitely now you know it ain't me.
--because I have ohana here and because we go to baby parties and graduation
luaus, and because I am a Kahu. When you decided to fund the helicopter, you
put a wonderful tool in the hands of our emergency providers. That tool has
saved many lives. As you look around the room, you'll see fire extinguish..., fire
extinguishers, an AED or two, and even emergency exit signs. No one takes away
the extinguishers if they aren't used frequently enough, and no one removes the
AED or the exit signs because they seem underutilized. They are put in place and
fixed, recharged, and checked frequently so when the emergency happens, lives
will be spared. Please get this funded so that we can spare even more families
from needless grief Thank you also for your patience with my husband. . .1 know
personally what a handful he can be.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. SCHAEFER: Sincerely, the Reverend Lynette Schaefer. . . .(chuckle). . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for our testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Scotty, question.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Scotty, I have a question.
MR. SCHAEFER: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, I find it real interesting. I've listened to
several people testify about this, and I've also watched, read what was in the
paper. And I'm, I'm interested. You know, the numbers seem to be very strange.
We hear small numbers of 16 and 20 and, you know, these really tiny numbers,
and yet we hear in testimony from people like yourself about all the many people
that are helped. Can you tell me why the numbers are so cockeyed? I mean
something's wrong.
MR. SCHAEFER: Actually, there, there's a few reasons. The first reason is that when
the helicopter first started and was put into play, it, there was a real strain on it to
do inter-facility work. At that point we were waiting 8, 10, 12 hours for air
ambulances. And so when we were budgeted with the State, we were concerned,
but we also couldn't compete with the private enterprise. But it was, that we
expected there would be about five or six inter-facility calls per month, and the
rest would be scene calls. When the two air ambulance, fixed wings came in, that
took the pressure off that. And what it's done is it, it, it. . .it, it's almost primarily
100 percent now scene calls. In fact if you look at the breakdown in the first four
years of the program, you'll see that it's a lot of inter-facility and some scene and
then you'll see that the inter-facility is almost gone. A couple of things that
happened. Number one, our business has slowed down when the tourist stay
away. There aren't too many tourists falling off cliffs, 'cause they're not coming.
So we slowed down significantly and even. . .I kind of call it the canary in the
coal mine because when there's a lot of tourist, it seems the local people seem to
get hurt a little bit more, too. The other thing is that we've been really, really
strict about safety and we've been really, really strict about flying only when
there's a benefit. One of the examples is when we had a plane crash on the west
end a few years ago, it was a crystal clear night, I could look over and see
Honolulu, I had seven patients, but the weather on Maui was storming. We
couldn't get out the door. So there's seven people who would've gone by
helicopter, but they couldn't get out 'cause it wasn't safe. The other thing about
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scene calls is they come in clumps. We'll be quiet for six or seven months and all
of a sudden boom, boom, boom, boom, boom, boom, boom. The other thing is
that you see only patients transported and not activations. Sometimes,
unfortunately, by the time the helicopter comes patients have died. Sometimes,
fortunately, they've gotten better. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, so for me to understand this, what you're telling me is
you may go out, but you don't necessarily pick up that person and transport them
to another facility, you may take care of it there or do something else, and all
they're counting is the actual transfer?
MR. SCHAEFER: Actual transports.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see. 'Cause, you know, we hear about all the activity
about you being called out, but it doesn't show in the numbers, but still you're
busy saving people and, and taking care of people.
MR. SCHAEFER: And, and we, we've been called out before where we've heard that it
was a bad accident and when we got there--last week there was a car over the cliff
in Kaupo and the helicopter was activated, but when they got there, there was
nobody hurt. So that's canceled. So that, that's actually a use, but it doesn't show
up 'cause there's not a transport.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. Because that explains this disparity in the
numbers. Thank you.
MR. SCHAEFER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question, Scotty.
MR. SCHAEFER: Okay, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On, on your calls, do you get your calls from 911 or do you
have another number that they call?
MR. SCHAEFER: On Molokai as well as the whole County, it's all 911.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: All 911?
MR. SCHAEFER: All 911.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So--
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MR. SCHAEFER: And we have a special dispatch center here just for Molokai.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So if we refer back to the 911 calls requesting you folks out
there, they have that information?
MR. SCHAEFER: I don't. . .the, the only numbers we needed to keep track of that, that
the County wanted us to keep and the State were the amount of patients. So
there's, there's. . .I tried to do query, that computer--about three years ago we
changed to a computerized system, and it's, it's a mess. I think they could get
some of that, but mostly they haven't been tracking those call-outs unless the
helicopter has actually been launched and on the way and turned around.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Scotty, good evening.
MR. SCHAEFER: Good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thanks for being at all our district meetings. You,
you travel far to come and speak on behalf of the medevac. I understand you
were greatly involved in, in the start of this service because this was from a
legislative act, too, in 2003-MR. SCHAEFER: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --that this service started, right? And the State
contributes about $700,000 and the County 600 something thousand. So if, if we
don't have, if we don't put money into this, does the State money also go away?
MR. SCHAEFER: The, the way that the bill was written at the time was that the only
way the State would release money is if the County released first. At that point it
was a complete 50-50 match, it was 611,500. Now the State is taking more, I
believe. They have 784,000 in the budget and they're asking for 672 from you.
But my understanding is that the way the legislation reads is the State cannot
release the money unless the County matches or comes out at least with the
611,500. They asked for 672,000.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Scott, thank you. Appreciate the service you
guys do-MR. SCHAEFER: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --and certainly, you know, this Committee is going
to work hard to keep that. Thank you for your testimony.
MR. SCHAEFER: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Joe Childs, followed by
Doug Rogers.
MR. CHILDS: Aloha, Council Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MR. CHILDS: My name is Joe Childs. I'm with, I'm the Director of Molokai Drop-In
Center here on the island. For the past 13 years, you have graciously provided
fundings for our program. Out of those 13 years, for the past 5 to 6 years, I've
been the Director there. We service the severely mentally ill. We have a program
that's developed to help educate them back into the community One of, a couple
of things we do is we have a garden project that help the members learn how to
grow their own vegetables and also share that in the community We also are part
of the Maui Food Bank. We service the community through the Food Bank. So
people in the community do come to us when there's a need, especially near the
end of the month when monies are low. These individuals that we serve, we serve
about 35 a week and within that week these individuals, that's a place for them to
have shelter during the day, also it helps them to be able to interact with the
community, and gives them a safe place to, to stay. Along with that, without this
program we would be in a really bad shape because budgets have been cut all
over for us. There used to be 5 people in our office and now I'm the only one left,
and I serve 70 clients along with these 35 that come throughout the week. And I
would ask that you continue to support this program because it's been a positive
not only for them, but also for our community Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you.
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AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Doug Rogers, followed by Pilialoha Kala..., Kalaiwaa.
MR. ROGERS: Aloha. Thanks for coming, thanks for being here. I want to express my
support for the, for the helicopter. I think it's very important, we need that. And I
have a suggestion to help with some economic activity. The, the building permit
process for simple permits to do simple reconstruction in existing homes has, has
become totally dysfunctional. It takes months now to get a permit to, to repair
your laundry room, and it used to be a very simple process and it should be, you
know. Is there a zoning conflict? No. Is it up to Building Code? If it is, pass
that. Is there no environmental impact? Then issue the permit and let us work.
That's all I have to say. Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for that information. Members,
questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much for being here. I'm very interested
in your, your comments about the building permits. We hear about this all the
time. We have been told that the process has been speeded up. Can you tell us
your.. .
MR. ROGERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .experience? I mean, we don't know who to believe.
We, they tell us they've speeded it up and we hear the public say it takes forever.
Please, can you elaborate? Did you apply for one-MR. ROGERS: Yes. Yes, I can.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --how long did it take?
MR. ROGERS: Okay. I'm a general building contractor. I specialize in remodels. I've
applied for several permits in the last year, one of 'em six months ago in August
for a lanai in Ranch Camp; the permit hasn't been issued yet. I got a letter from
the Planning Commission--seems to be the major bottleneck. I sent them
information in September, nothing. Again, I wrote a letter to the Mayor and I did
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get a request for the same information again in February. And still nothing, no
permit. I call, my calls are blown off. I e-mail, I get no response. And yes, I
have applied for a lot of permits. I've been building homes and restoring homes
on Molokai for almost 20 years, and it used to be a very simple process to go and
speak to the building inspector here, give him the sketches, dimensions, whatever.
Like I said, if there was no conflict with the zoning or the Code--there's no
environmental impact to restoration work on an existing home.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No fire, no water concerns?
MR. ROGERS: Well, actually, you know, most of the other departments do sign-off
relatively. I mean it used to be-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Where does it get stuck?
MR. ROGERS: Planning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
MR. ROGERS: Almost 100 percent of the time, Planning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. It's important we hear this from
the people that are experiencing it. Thank you.
MR. ROGERS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question. You say. . .is, is it the
Planning Commission or the Planning Department that takes long time?
MR. ROGERS: Both.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Both?
MR. ROGERS: Yes. Every manini, little permit has to go to, to a meeting of the
Planning Commission.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You do have a Molokai Commission.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Molokai Planning Commission.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .Molokai Planning Commission. Is the bottleneck here?
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MR. ROGERS: It doesn't really appear to be because most of the time it's like if this
paperwork didn't leave here back when, than when this paperwork didn't leave
here, the permits were issued pretty fast--for simple permits.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. ROGERS: I'm not talking about building a house on the beach.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. ROGERS: I'm talking about repairing your, restoring your laundry room.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. We'll, we'll follow-up. Thank you.
MR. ROGERS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Pilialoha, followed by Norine Puanani Flowers.
MS. KALAIWAA: Aloha, my name is Pilialoha L. Kalaiwaa and I live in this
community, and I support everybody who went before me. And I know you're
tasked, your guy's job is not an easy one. But I know you will find, to find help
in our budget. I'm here to support the Food Bank, MEO. Our kupuna who do
have a set budget who live in Home Pumehana, they catch the MEO bus, same as
I do. I also take, you know, food (inaudible) from the Food Bank. I'm with the
Salvation Army, that I volunteer. And like I said, just sitting here and listening to
all the testimony, let's save our resource what we have left. I know it's not an
easy task for all you folks. It is a budget that we live by with tough economic.
While sitting here and just. . .I know you folks know what is important and it is a
process that we have to go through. And we all need your help. Please help our
community Please, I humbly ask for all of us, from education to water. It's our
life. That's all we have left. It's us who live here and it's not going to fade away
tomorrow because we have no place else to go, but to take care Molokai and do
our best. Please help us all.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mahalo.
MS. KALAIWAA: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again.
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MS. KALAIWAA: Especially the gas, bumbye get hard time put gas for the barge come
in for bring our food from Maui, you know. It's not an easy--and thank you folks
for listening to all our testimony.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Norine Puanani Flowers, followed by
William Thomas. . .oh, Dr. William Thomas.
MS. FLOWERS: Aloha to all the Members. My name is Norine P. Flowers. I'm here to
represent myself, speaking on the behalf of MEO and Kuhao Business. Without
these people here, I would not have even started to think about opening a farm
business. But through the help of Kuulei Arce and Aunty Annette, they have
stretched forth their hand and help my ohana start something. They still stand
behind us and pertaining to business plans, trying to get our business going--not
only for our business, but for everybody. 'Cause in times when the children need
help, we donate off of the farm. We go to the elderlies and provide them with
vegetables. We don't take out of their pocket, we help. Instead of selling it at
prices in the store, we give 'em like a dollar, and yet we know we can go higher,
but we're not here to take money from them. We're here to help everybody. Also
pertaining to the new business that's coming up, pertaining to the medevac, I
stand behind them today because they're here to help us, not take away. If they
can provide life go, going to the other islands, I thank them 'cause we have
nothing here. Every one of us stand with each other to help and yet, I just moved
here in 2007, but the close-knit of Molokai has changed my understanding from
moving from Honolulu to here. We need the businesses here, we need everybody,
especially MEO services and Kuhao Business. Aloha, bruddahs. Any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? No
questions. Dr. William Thomas.. .
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .followed by Vonda Stone.
MR. THOMAS: Hi, good evening. I'm Dr. Bill Thomas, I'm the Medical Director of
Molokai General Hospital, and I'm here to talk about the helicopter this evening.
It's very important for rural areas like Molokai to have access for transfer of
patients to a level of higher care, a higher level of care tertiary facility. And
whereas Molokai Hospital is a critical access hospital, and over the last five or
seven years we've been able to add a lot of services and some state-of-the-art
equipment, we are still not staffed to handle trauma patients beyond the
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stabilization for transport. So it's very important, in fact it's critical to life that we
be able to transport these patients quickly to another facility that can handle
trauma. The survival of a trauma patient relies on the timeliness of the transfer,
and we do utilize two flight ambulance services here and for the most part that
serves us well. However, there are certain times where there is a threat of loss of
life or limb where the quick deployment of a helicopter to the scene is crucial in
the life of the patient. An EMS crew can call an ambulance to the scene of a
trauma and be able to, to directly transport that patient. There's a couple of
instances that come to mind--and, and I know that Tim mentioned it--a shark
attack on the east end; an open head wound from an MVA. . .two, two instances
where the helicopter directly transported the patient. And just a couple of weeks
ago a young man, an MVA, who was transported to the hospital for intubation so
that he can be safely transported and then brought to the baseball field across the
street where the helicopter was waiting, and then quickly taken to Maui
Memorial. So these are some instances where the services that we are able to
provide on our island do not address the needs of these trauma patients. And it's
a big investment, I understand, but the timeliness of transport saves lives and it's
an investment that a rural community like Molokai relies on. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Dr. Thomas? Seeing
none, thank you again.
MR. THOMAS: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Vonda Stone, followed by Dr. Nitta Bogart.
MS. STONE: . . .Aloha, my name is Vonda Stone and I'm a parent of a child in
Kaunakakai Head Start B. I'm also a Policy Council representative for that
center. Aloha, Gladys.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aloha.
MS. STONE: I am also a student at Maui Community College, majoring in human
services, amongst other. . .many other community organizations. I'm here to
speak on behalf of my family members of Hale 0 Kawela, which is at the
4 1/2 mile marker. Please know that funding is being used wisely. It's being used
to enable families like ours to seek higher education, to attend public functions in
town, to seek and maintain employment, to maintain a sense of well-being by
getting transportation to and from doctor and dental appointments. I know, yeah,
we are faced with economic challenges and I, I think that's been an issue for a
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while now, and I, I just want you to know that funding of the MEO Transportation
Program as well as the Head Start Programs are very vital for our island. And I
can stand here confidently to say that I, I've been a parent in the past and I am
currently involved in my community, and I love it. And I'd just like to
thank--these are the members that live at the 4 1/2 mile marker. We're only a small
portion of Molokai that utilizes the MEO transportation. This is our family and
friends that have decided to come here tonight on, on behalf for our appreciation
for the MEO transportation and what it has done for us. My little girl here rides
the bus to attend hula practices in town. I also have another daughter who attends
middle school and rides the MEO transportation when she misses the school bus.
I also have a three year old who attends the, the MEO Head Start, and I depend on
that transportation which we get on at 7:45 in the morning. And it's a daily
routine for us that we get on that bus, and I take him to school which is about
8 o'clock in the morning. And school for him is half day, it's at 12 o'clock. I
wish it wasn't, but, you know, I, I try to utilize and try to make use of the
programs even if it's not full day. It's something, it's better than nothing. But
please know that your funding is enabling us as families to be able to stay
together as families, to be able to maintain and, yeah, seek employment, to also be
able to seek and maintain higher education.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. STONE: We have, we have more family members out there that are going to be
attending Maui Community College, the Molokai extension this coming fall. So
the services, the transportation services are very vital. So please know that, yeah,
it's, it's making a difference in, in our lives and in the lives, I'm pretty much sure
in the lives of all the other community members who utilize the services. But I
want to thank you for allowing me to speak on behalf of my family members.
Thank you, Committee Members. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. . . --(change of tape, start 2a)-- . . .questions for
the testifier? Member Baisa?
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Wanda [sic], for being here tonight.
MS. STONE: Gladys.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm, I'm so proud of you. And also, thank you for your
family and friends or your ohana for coming with you. Question. Obviously you
make good use of the service, and I'm kind of concerned about the possibility of
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all of you being able to or being made to pay $1 each way to go wherever you go.
You didn't comment on that. Is that going to be a burden on you and will it, will
it stop your people from being able to participate in activities?
MS. STONE: Well, I think it's very important as consumers, yeah, that we are here to let
you tonight that we cannot afford, we cannot afford the dollar fee for every time
we get on the bus, and it's very important. Maybe, you know, funding can be cut
somewhere else, but you can't. . .we, we can't afford it. We can't afford it.
And. . .thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, thank you very much. You know, I was hoping that
we would've had a community conversation about this before it was put before us
without any warning. We didn't know it was coming and then there it was in the
budget. So we're trying to deal with it. But I think it's important we hear from
you and the whole community what the impact of this is, 'cause we have these
programs we want you to participate. But you cannot participate if you can't get
there. So it's really, really important, and I want to thank all of you for making
the effort. Thank you.
MS. STONE: Thank you. Aloha.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you. Dr. Nita Bogart, followed by Kammy Purdy.
MS. BOGART: Aloha and thank you all for coming. I am that laundry room lady that
Doug Rogers was talking about. . . .(chuckle). . . So, I'm here to support that
idea. My, I have actually three concerns. First of all, why did I need a permit? I
am a, an elderly, living alone, disabled lady and I did receive MEO services and
was grateful for it during my period, before I had my surgery and was able to
walk again. I was in a wheel chair for five months, okay, and I was trying to
make my laundry room accessible because I don't know how long the surgery is
going to work. And I, I started the process in September and I'm still waiting to
have my laundry room finished. Okay. In the meantime, I. . .it needs to be
accessible and I need to be able to use my laundry room to do my laundry. So, I
cannot do that until this process is clarified and, and cleared up. And I had to pay
a big fine, and of course that was hard on me and my budget because I didn't
know I needed one. I thought I was just using existing, existing electric and, and
plumbing stuff and under the roof, I wasn't building anything separate, but I had
to pay a huge fine because I didn't know I needed that, need that building permit.
So it's been a difficult process, and Doug and I have talked about this and realize
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that we'd like to have your, your assistance in seeing if there can be something
done to make that work a little bit better and not delay somebody like me who
really. . .you know, all the people need it, but months to get something done that's
really necessary. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kammy Purdy, followed by Barbara Ludgate.
MS. PURDY: Aloha. Aloha, County Council Members. My name is Kammy Purdy. I
am the Director of the Molokai Youth Center. I am here to urge the County
Council to please continue to fund the Molokai Youth Center. Annually, annually
we serve approximately 850 Molokai children. We offer many activities, such
has homework tutoring, recreational games, cultural values and traditions, arts
and crafts, family night gathering, gardening, and lots more. The children enjoy
coming to the Youth Center because our staff truly cares for them. We take the
time to instill respectable values in our children. They are all good children that
need the Molokai Youth Center. I also would like to thank you for funding the
Food Bank and the MEO bus system because our children do use both ent...,
entities. So thank you for all your financial support and what, what happened
here. . .you can see some of my kids and they're actually, it's getting late and they
did all sign up, they all signed up to testify. They all are holding their little
testimony papers, but I don't know whether or not we should just hand in the
testimony because it's time for them to get home, it's a Monday night, and school
tomorrow. But these are our keikis. We have staff members here also and you, if
you want to listen to a couple of them, you know, say something, that would be
great, they're all here, and we see them daily where I, I feel like I've got 40 extra
mo' opunas because I always see them every, everyday. So.. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Why don't we give the kids a chance to talk.
MS. PURDY: Say your name and who you are.
MASTER ZEITHAMEL: My name is Caz. I love the Youth Center because they, they
have awesome, have awesome games and they feed us kids.
MS. PURDY: Okay. Thank you. You want to say something? Read, read your paper.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (chuckle).. .
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MS. PURDY: Come on.
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. PURDY: Okay, Kyra. Kyra.
MISS ANGLIN: Aloha, my name is Kyra Anglin. I like the Molokai Youth Center
because I know they help my mom and dad by helping me do my homework and
letting my daddy and momma finish work. And without the Molokai Youth
Center, my mom and daddy would not get money. I do not know what I would do
without the Youth Center. Thank you for listening and. . .and giving the Molokai
Youth Center money.
MS. PURDY: Okay. Oh, Adam wants to talk. Okay.
MASTER ANGLIN: I like. . .I like Molokai Youth Center because they feed us
everyday, they have fun games, they help kids with homework, and that's why I
like the Youth Center. I use the MEO bus to the Youth Center.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. What's your name?
MS. PURDY: Adam.
MASTER ANGLIN: Adam.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Adam. Last name?
MASTER ANGLIN: Anglin.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. PURDY: Okay, next? Josie, Josie, you.
MISS MAWAE: My name is Josie. I like the Molokai Youth Center because after
school they help me with my homework, and I get to play here and have fun.
They also give us a snack after homework and sometimes we watch movies.
Thank you for helping the MYC, Molokai Youth Center.
MS. PURDY: Very good. Here you go, here you go. . . .Go ahead, Barbara.
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MISS BARBARA LUDGATE: Hi, my name is Barbara. I like going to the Youth
Center because they help me with my homework and they have fun games, and
we get to watch movies on Tuesdays.
MISS A. LUDGATE: Hi, my name is. . . (chuckle). . .my name is Ana. I like the
Molokai Youth Center because I enjoy doing my homework over there. And
thank you for the Food Bank for giving us food. We eat at the Youth Center
almost three times.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: It's Alex's turn.
MS. PURDY: Okay, Alex. Alex. And then what we can do is just hand in all of our
testimony.
MISS BEVERLY LUDGATE: My name is Beverly and I'm eight years old. I like the
Molokai Youth Center. . . (chuckle).. .
MS. PURDY: Beverly, come on, behave.
MISS BEVERLY LUDGATE: I like the Molokai Youth Center because I like doing.. .
Stop. . . . (chuckle).. .
MS. PURDY: Okay, girls.
MISS BEVERLY LUDGATE: I like doing my homework and I like playing with my
friends. My mom signed us. . . (chuckle).. .
MS. PURDY: Okay, okay. Keep on going, Beverly. Okay.
MISS BEVERLY LUDGATE: My mom signed us up for the Molokai Youth
Center . . . (chuckle). . . Stop it.
MS. PURDY: Thank you, Beverly.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Come on, kids.
MS. PURDY: Behave. Okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: It's Alex's turn.
MS. PURDY: Okay.
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MASTER MAWAE: Hi, my name is Kukuna Mawae. I like the Molokai Youth Center
because they help me with my homework and I get to play games.
MS. PURDY: Okay. Thank you. Thank you very much for your time.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. PURDY: Kids, drop off-CHAIR PONTANILLA: And if you can provide your testimony to-MS. PURDY: --drop off your testimony over there. Watch your step, watch your step.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. PURDY: Any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. PURDY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Barbara Ludgate, followed by Beverly Ludgate. . . .Pau.
Okay. Georgina Kuahuia.
MS. KUAHUIA: Okay. Good evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good evening.
MS. KUAHUIA: First of all, we'd like to thank the lord for bringing you folks over
safely to hear all our concerns. My name is Georgina Kuahuia, and I work with
the Salvation Army here on Molokai for 11--no, sorry--12 years now. I also
represent Maui Food Bank. I am the distributor for here on the island of Molokai.
We have 18 agencies from east to west and every month we service over 2,000
people, individuals, 2,000. Each agency that we get our food surplus from, we
only get at least 5 pallets and we have to divide that 5 pallets to 18 agencies. And
that's really not enough, but God always provide and he multiply it so that we can
meet the needs of the people. So, I just thank the lord for Maui Food Bank who's
been supporting Molokai so that we can reach out to other people. I also want to
talk on behalf of the bus also. The bus is very important for our people here on
Molokai, and we don't even know if our school buses will still be running in the
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future. So if you're gonna charge for the kids to get on the bus, you not going do
it, you're not gonna do it because some families have ten children--`cause I know,
I service them. I have almost one family who has 14 altogether in one family.
Now you can imagine how much the cost for the bus to and from school or to and
from, to the doctors, or to and from wherever they need to go. And one more
important thing that you need to know about the bus. They take you to the airport
if you need to go for doctors off-island. That is very important. We need the bus
to stay on Molokai affordable, affordable. That's all we can talk about is
affordable here on Molokai. We are sustainable here, over here. We go to the
mountain, we go to the ocean, and we go to the land, but we still need the services
of MEO. One is to get it to the places where we need to, and also Maui Food
Bank. Maui Food Bank has been running here now for, I believe, about 16 years.
It's been 11 years since I took over. And I thank the lord for the services 'cause
we are still going because the need is still needed here on the island. We have the
highest unemployment, right, highest unemployment; a lot of people still on
welfare, a lot of elderlies. We service from preschool all the way to the kupunas.
And if the kupunas cannot make it, we deliver it, we deliver to them so that they
can have the nutritions that they need. So please, continue to support Maui Food
Bank, continue to support MEO bus service--not only the bus service, but the
services that they provide for the island of Molokai. Okay. It's important to us.
We looked everyplace else. Hey, we're the only island no more, what you call,
transportation services. But because of MEO, we have this service.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. KUAHUIA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again.
MS. KUAHUIA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next testifier is Judy Caparida, followed by
Malia Kamai.
MS. CAPARIDA: Aloha. . . .(chuckle). . . It's nice to see you guys, we see you guys
once a year. You know, we're so blessed, on Molokai we're very blessed people,
you know. It doesn't matter how little it is, we still survive and that's because the
lord love us and we love him, too. And I just want to thank you folks for being
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here this evening. I got a lot of issues, okay. I am a community person and three
minutes is not enough.
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. CAPARIDA: I go to every meeting because I love Molokai and because we're the
only place we ever get to survive. This is our home. There's no place else we can
move, you know, because everything's too expensive. Well, over here is
expensive, but we still have the ocean and the mountain, and you till the soil and
you get bread. If you don't, well, I'm sorry, you know, I'm not talking about the
wrong kind bread, I'm talking about bread, vegetables--that's what I'm talking
about. I'm talking about MEO bus, and it was you. . .I remember her coming to
Molokai and presenting us with this service. That's how long I've known
Mrs. Baisa. And we're very thankful. I have to tell you guys this story. I was
called to go on jury duty to Maui. I went on the boat, you pay your own trip, they
will, they going give you reimbursement, but then you gotta do all that. I went all
the way to Maui. I got on the taxi 'cause I didn't know had a bus, MEO bus, I
didn't know . . .(chuckle). „where it was anyway. So, I got on the, I got all the
way to the court, it cost me $65. I said, hello. Well, anyway I got there. After I
was done I came out there, and you know what, I stand by the bus. They said,
Judy, get one bus going down there for dollar. I went out there and praise the
lord, there was the bus service from there all the way to the wharf. I got on the
boat. . .it was half an hour early, we made it, that was the last bus again to go
home. But see, we're so thankful, thankful that you guys got that, that service for
us when we go to Maui and we have it here on Molokai. The bus services run
from west to east and it is for doctor, it is for dialysis, it is for everything that
Molokai has to use bus services for. There's a lot of kupunas that don't have cars
and if the family pick 'em up because of the storms and weather here, they have
trucks. So the kupunas no can ride in the back of the truck. So we're so thankful
for the bus service. That's number one, okay, that's MEO.
Maui Food Bank. We heard they want to cutback on our Maui Food Bank. I am
a distributor, too. I mean not a distributor, but go out there and volunteer my
services for our community on the east end. I deliver the food to all those people
out there.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. CAPARIDA: Never mind the three minutes. Son y, I have to tell my story. Only
once a year you guys come here.
-

AUDIENCE: . . . (chuckle).. .
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MS. CAPARIDA: And, okay, the landfill. There's a lot of junk cars in a lot of places
and they were doing a service here, but then they stopped the services because the
money ran out. So this is why I don't know how we can get the services, but they
were telling me that we need that services, okay.
And permits. You know the bruddah's talking about permits? I'm going to have
me a new house and I just had my permits. Let me tell you, there's so much
problems with permits. If you ain't got the money, you ain't got honey, you ain't
gonna have a home. Even just to put up just a little shack on the side of a build...,
a garage, one extension, it is hard for Molokai people to have that service. But
you get a millionaire come over here, and let me tell you in three months--I go to
every meeting-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. CAPARIDA: --they got one big house, they got a big house there. They say, what,
all the time they said that, oh, they don't need this, they don't need that. They call
that exemption. I hate that word "exemption".
Even for the vets, we asked for the veterans center. They paid their dues on
Molokai. A lot of them came home, thank the lord they came home alive. But for
those that did not, a lot of our people here, our young mens go to the war so that
we can have freedom. So, I, I really back up our veterans. They need a place to
go and talk story. They're all dying, they're waiting for their place.
And another thing is the Drop-In Center, the mental health. We have so many
people that need the services, and they cutting back on all that, too. I mean every
service on Molokai is important because we look to Maui, Maui is the momma
place over there.
MS. NAKATA: Five minutes.
MS. CAPARIDA: Feed the keikis over here. We need the services to keep us alive on
this island. Okay. We need surviving that. And then we get this. . .the Youth
Center.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Excuse me, Judy-MS. CAPARIDA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --can you complete in one minute?
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MS. CAPARIDA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. CAPARIDA: The Youth Center needs the services because our kids having
furloughs. If you guys don't know, they have only four days a week school
nowadays. So they need their services. That's where they do their homework for
the week. So, I'm just asking you folks whatever the service is for Molokai,
please make room for all of it. Thank you, Danny. Thank you, all you guys. I
love you guys. Good evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
MS. CAPARIDA: Oh, you guys get questions for me?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, no. You, you answered all our questions.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Malia Kamai. As soon as Malia is completed
with her testimony, we're going to take a ten minute recess. So, Malia, go ahead.
MS. KAMAI: Hi, my name is Malia Kamai and we are here in support of the MEG Head
Start Program. This program has given us the opportunity to seek employment
and attend college to further our education. It helps our children to be
kindergarten readiness. It provides them with two hot meals and one snack a day.
No school supplies are needed. The program provides everything for the children,
and parents are not asked to purchase anything. And finding quality childcare can
be costly, and this Head Start Program does this. We'd just like to thank you for
supporting the Head Start Program and we hope that you continue supporting it,
and to keep in mind that education is the key in our children's success and it's
better to start it when they're preschoolers. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Ladies and gentlemen, the Committee is going to take a ten minute
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recess so we can stretch our legs and use the bathroom if we need to. So this
meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel). . .

RECESS: 8:13 p.m.
RECONVENE: 8:19 p.m.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, just to let you know, we did have 71
people signed up for public testimony. So we're just about halfway done, so.
And, members of the public, please bear with us.
MS. BROWN: Mr. Chairman, when you call the two names, could you ask if they'll
come on, on ahead so we, we snap it up right away. That'll save a little time.
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. The next set of testifies, testifiers are the
Jenkins family: Heidi, Moriah, Lilly, Sarah. That's it.
MS. JENKINS: Aloha, Budget Chair Pontanilla, Council Chair Danny Mateo. . .Uncle
Danny. I just wanted--my name's Heidi Jenkins, I'm a teacher on Molokai, and I
just wanted to speak on behalf of Maui Economic Development Board. Maui
Economic Development Board supports continuing education workshops for
teachers. They actually fund transportation and workshop fees for teachers to go
to Maui and participate in activities in science technology, engineering, and math.
This education and these activities then are translated into the classroom and just
positively affect the students. MEDB also provides education grants for student
programs on Molokai that support science technology and engineering, such as
our Molokai Robotics Program that's been going on now starting off in our third
year. It's also helped with other grants, such as the Kaunakakai Greenhouse in
Hydroponics that's going up at Kaunakakai School, the EAST Program at the
high school as well as the middle school, GIS mapping, lots of exciting
technology fields. My students are going to--well, my children--they're students
as well for robotics; they'll share a little bit about the robotics program. So, I'm
not going to talk too much about that. But MEDB also supports renewable energy
projects, such as the hydroponics greenhouse I mentioned, and also the current
compact fluorescent light bulb project that we're doing here on Molokai currently.
This project began from a research project, On Green Transportation, by robotics
students. The students quickly learned that a negative byproduct of fossil fuels
was carbon, carbon dioxide emissions, which is one cause of global warming.
Students shared their idea of using wind technology with a project called sky
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sails, a large kite attached to the Molokai Princess as an alternate fuel. They
shared this with County Council Chair Danny Mateo who also supported the
initiatives to keep going on with that program. My oldest daughter is looking at
that as her senior project in looking at maybe getting a prototype here. From,
from there the robotic students also wanted to do something proactively, and
that's where the CFL project came from to reverse the effects of CO2 emissions.
Using compact fluorescent light bulbs was one way the students thought they
could do this. Students continue to work with Uncle Danny currently right now to
change out CFLs in our County buildings as well as with the 3,000 households
here on Molokai. If all 90,000 CFL bulbs replaced are incandescent light bulbs,
then Molokai alone would save 43,000 pounds of CO2 emissions from being
admitted into our environment, and that's 84,000 barrels of foreign oil. So our
goal is to educate the community to go out there on Saturdays and to, you know,
let them know about how we can be less dependent on fossil fuels. And these are
just a few of the examples from one entity, like Maui Economic Development
Board, where they would start with one project like robotics-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. JENKINS: --kids get interested and it exponentially develops into all these other
amazing products. So please continue to support Maui Economic Development
Board.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next?
MISS L. JENKINS: Hi. Aloha, my name is Lilly Jenkins. Thank you, Council
Members, for coming today. I represent Molokai Robotics and MEDB Last year
we entered a robotics competition on the island of Maui. Both of our teams
entered. One of our teams won and got to go to state's in Oahu. The other team
was alternate. While we were in Maui we got to attend a program for Akimeka.
Also, we got to see the supercomputer and they showed us the earth and all the
satellites surrounding it in 3-D. It was an awesome experience. Maui Economic
Development Board helped to pay for both teams to travel, compete, and visit
these technology sites. My favorite was Women In Technology, MEDB, and the
Excite Camp for girls who want to become engineers. Thank you. I also support
MEO because my sister Sarah and I need to catch the bus from school to town.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
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MISS S. JENKINS: I'm Sarah Jenkins, and during our trip to Maui we had the
opportunity to visit a lot of engineering and technology companies to learn about
career pathways. Some of our place, some of the places we visited on Maui were
Hawaiian Dredging, Engineering and Construction Company to learn about the
computer-assisted design software and architecture. This was a really cool, really
cool because I love to draw and I am interested in being an architect when I grow
up. This technology may be useful in, in the future if I want to further this career.
We also went to the Maui Supercomputer, the Makena Wastewater Treatment
Plant, the University of Hawaii Marine Center at Sand Island, Akimeka, and
MEDB. When we went to the FLL competition, we got to meet a lot of new
people, like the Mayor, Lieutenant Governor Duke Aiona, and we were
interviewed by KITV News, Molokai Dispatch, and The Maui News from our
success and being the first team from Molokai. Thanks to our, the MEDB I got to
experience all of these different companies while doing robotics and having a
good time with our group members. If I got the opportunity to do this again, I
would say yes.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MISS M. JENKINS: Hi, my name is Moriah and I've been in robotics--thank you--I've
been in robotics for three years. As my sister said, we were in the same group
with three other students and our teammate at the state's. I learned lots of math
skills, 'cause that's like my worst subject, by doing these robotics programs
sponsored by MEDB. We went to and visited UH and we learned. . .we went to
the Science and Technology Institute over there. And I want to be a veterinarian.
And so by doing this, I learned a lot more in my, the career field. I want to enter,
like you can do bio-engineering and I also did a lot of sustainable projects, and so
they also have a career in sustainable engineering. And it also opened up a lot of
ideas of different scholarships that I could apply for because Women In
Technology is a very scarce field.
Also, I'm in support of the Humane Society 'cause I work over there a lot
sometimes with Aunty Tessa and stuff, and so I'm in support of them. They, also
when I work over there, they give me reductions and stuff because we rescued
eight puppies from across the street from our house, and they helped a lot with
keeping them healthy and stuff and safe. And also, I swim too and so after I
would go. . .practice would go from like 2:00 to 4:30. And so after that I'd have
to go home east end, and my mom and dad wouldn't want to stay in town that late
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sometimes. So, I mean it'll help me a lot for transportation from town to home.
Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. There are three more students, robotic teams. So if
you can come up and, and provide us your name and provide your testimony.
MISS S. CHOW: Hi, Maui County.. .
MS. JENKINS: Council.
MISS S. CHOW: . . .Council Members. I represent Molokai Robotics. Hi, my name is
Sunni Chow. I go to Kaunakakai School as a 3 th grader. One thing I learned from
robotics is that it's very important to work together. Sometimes if you don't work
together, you might mess up and your robot will be ruined. So that's all. . .oh,
thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
MISS H. CHOW: Hi, my name is Hikilii Chow, and I like to go to robotics because I'm
homeschooled and I don't get to see my friends that, that much. So when I go to
robotics, I can hangout with my friends and meet new people. And robotics can
help the environment later in the future.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
MASTER CHOW: Hi, my name is Kapahu Chow. I'm homeschooled and in 6 th grade.
I think robotics is good because I can see my friends that is good. . . --(change of
tape, start 2b)-- . . .what I'm doing can help the environment when I--and it can
help me in my future because when I want to. . .when I grow up, I want to become
an engineer. And what I learned from robotics is engineering. It's, it's fun to
build a robot, but it's also fun, also hard. And I learned how to software a
program. It's hard because I have to get it just right or it won't work, and the
computer will sometimes turn off and your work will not save your progress.
That's all the things that I've learned, and that's why I like robotics. Please
continue to support Maui Economic Development Board.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the Jenkins family or
the Chow family?
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: I do.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Here you go.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: It, it's. . .for Heidi.
MS. JENKINS: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Heidi, I had the opportunity of sitting with the kids and being
interviewed by the kids, which was a rude awakening for me.. .
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: . . .because these little ones were asking me these rather
difficult, you know, and complex questions regarding technology and the
changes. It started, it started with the, the. . .the sail project, which would be to
eliminate, alleviate the use of fossil fuels with the sail attachment to the Maui
Princess. That was absolutely incredible. And to just listen to you and the kids
today, this community of ours is really in good hands, and I really thank you for
the work you're doing in having our kids develop to become interested in the
technology. So kudos to you and mahalo for a job well done.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions?
MS. JENKINS: No, I, I. . .I thank you for that. Obviously most teachers don't do that
for the praise, but it is the programs and the funding that makes it happen because
we wouldn't be able to compete and travel and do these programs without the
continued funding. So sometimes we don't always see the behind the scenes of
how that happens. So, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Shari Lynn. Shari Lynn, Shari Lynn.
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MS. LYNN: Aloha.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aloha.
MS. LYNN: . . .Chairman Mateo and the Maui County Council. I have some pictures of
our project. It's the same picture, front and back. But I'm going to start at this
end, can pass it by, and then I'll scoop it up on the way out. . . . (inaudible).. .
Note: Short pause while Ms. Lynn distributes pictures to the Council Members.

You know, you, you want to have some scenery while, while you're hearing to
my, my story here. . . . (chuckle). . . So anyways, I'm here on behalf of Ka Hale
Pomaikai. It's a recovery organization on the east end of Molokai. The County
Council has been so kind to find room for it in the budget the past several years,
and let me tell you, that it's really making a difference in the lives of people here
on Molokai. Unlike Scotty, I, I don't have a husband who's sick, but I do have a
letter that he wrote that I'm going to read. And he's not sick today, but 23 years
ago he was. And so I'm going to. . .(chuckle). . . Yeah. No, he, he'll admit it.
. . .(chuckle). . . So, I'm going read what he wrote. And tonight he's celebrating
his 23 rd consecutive year of drug- and alcohol-free living because of programs
like this. So.. .
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
MS. LYNN: Representatives of the Maui County Council: Aloha. And may I begin by
thanking you for your support and funding in the past. I've been in recovery
myself and understand well the need for support. You have made it possible for
Ka Hale Pomaikai to continue its mission to create a safe, supportive
environment where education and recovery, combined with traditional, cultural
values can blossom. We at Ka Hale Pomaikai thank you very much for that.
Mahalo.
I have in the beginnings of Ka Hale Pomaikai done volunteer work as my way of
giving back and reaching out into the community, and in turn have been blessed
with a more purposeful life. Most of us understand how difficult the task of
helping someone to free themselves from drug or alcohol addiction is; that only
by persistence, education, and recovery and a constant supportive environment
can this help us to turn the corner. Recovery on Molokai is possible. It started as
a flickering light and now is bright in numbers. It will continue to grow if we
educate and also allow it to do so. Please continue to help Ka Hale Pomaikai.
With the aid of your funding, we promise to provide the best service within our
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community, within our ability to reach out to our community with a single-minded
goal to help the addict and recovery.

. . .And he signed his name, Tim. And I submitted that testimony and several
others from the members of the recovery community First of all, I want to say
that we all know that treatment saves lives, but guess what, it also saves money.
For every dollar that is spent on incarceration, only three cents goes to treatment.
That's a big, big, big number that we can change. If we save by keeping one
person away from recidivism and one person out of the institutions, we can save
$5,000 a month.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. LYNN: Okay. . . . (chuckle). . . I don't want to take up more of your time, plus I'm
getting hoarse. . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. LYNN: But anyways, I brought people with me that are members of our recovery
community that are here to support, and that's very bold of them to come forward.
So, I just want to actually thank them.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Can you introduce the people?
MS. KALIMA: My name is Le Anne Place Kalima, and I am a recovering addict. I've
been an addict for 20 years, and I was in the Maui-Molokai Drug Court Program
which I graduated on October 26 th . And the day after that program, I knew I
wasn't ready for. . .to face the world. So what I did was I enrolled in her
program, and thanks to her program they teach you--`cause when you're in
addiction, you lose your cultural values. Thanks to her program, which taught us
how to grow plants, go fishing, you know, paddling canoe. We do, we got back
to our culture, you know, which I am very proud to say that, you know, 'cause I
lost that in my addition, I really did. But thanks to her, I've gotten back into
doing a lot of things that I used to do before, making pickle mango, making
mango seed, you know, I, I. . .and I love it, you know. I'd also like to say for the,
the medevac people. . .thanks to them on October, October 10 th , 2005, I
committed suicide and thanks to their promptness, I am here today speaking on
their behalf. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
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MR. MARIANO: Hi, my name is Kalani. I'm a recovering addict. I've been an addict
for about 30-somewhat years. And thanks to Ka Hale Pomaikai, I going make
one year clean in April. So.. .
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
MR. MARIANO: . . .I think this program is, you know, really good. So you gotta keep it
going, you know.
MR. ESPANIOLA: My name is Bronson Linkee Espaniola. I just wen' go start this
program, but thank, thanks to this program, I doing good and staying sober. I've
been sober for one month now. That's a while.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. LYNN: Thank you very much for hearing us tonight. And once again, the main
reason that we had come here is not to beg for more money, but to say thank you,
thank you so much for saving our lives.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Tania Joao, followed by Marshelle Castro.
MS. JOAO: Council Members, aloha. My name is Tania Joao, and I stand before you
this evening to testify on behalf of MEO and ask that you grant the funds
requested by this agency. MEO has been involved and, and pivotal in providing
such gap in services program in this community for years. Granting the funds
needed to this agency will allow the continual services. The impact of the
services has directly and indirectly touched nearly everyone on this island. This
agency has impacted me directly as well as indirectly. If I may for a moment talk
about the direct impact that this program has on me. My husband and I returned
back home after being away for about 17 years. We weren't aware of all the
different business or how to start a business, but we had a desire to open up a
business. However, in not having the information necessary to do something, I
came across a friend that was able to share that MEO had a business course. I
inquired within and soon found my husband and I attending the, the Core Four
Business Planning classes that was taught by Kuulei. The knowledge I gained
from the class really sparked something within my husband, and it was an
affirmation of me of some of the business practices that I had--you know, he
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always gave me heartaches when trying to understand business sides. But that
sparked drove him to materialize his dreams and today, we have a small-scale
production farm as a result of attending this class and understanding the business
components of the class here. In the indirect impact side of it, I work as a
personal care attendant to the kupunas of the island. I have kupunas as far out as
Kawela and, and Hoolehua, and some of those kupunas rely on the MEO for their
transportation to the doctors, as well as utilizing the Red Card Services Program
for discount purchases, and utilizing the Chore Services that that agency provides.
And without those components, this kupunas could not live in the community
independently and perhaps may need to be carted off-island, as most of them are
done, when the care is beyond their independent living. So in closing, I ask that
MEO and its programs. . .because they've done such a number of good works in
this community, that they be allowed to continue providing that opportunity and
the continual services in this community. And I ask that you appropriate all the
monies that they had requested. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
MS. JOAO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Marshelle Castro, followed by Laemoa Kai'iwi.
MS. BROWN (from the audience): Marshelle isn't here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Marshelle? How about Lae.. .
MS. BROWN (from the audience): Marshelle isn't here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, she's not here? How about Laemoa Kai'iwi? . . .Not here?
Deb Mapel.
MS. MAPEL: Good evening, Council. I'm Deb Mapel and, yeah, I used to come to you
guys a lot and ask for things--Danny knows--and then I kind of stepped back and
got out of coming here. . . . (chuckle). . . But I, I'm here tonight because I want
you to be my messenger to the Mayor. I've been listening to her on her Mon...,
Monday mornings on the radio and followed a few things in the paper, and I was
surprised, I was shocked when she said the County workers--this is not going to
be popular; sorry, folks--that the County workers were only going to take one day
furlough. And I'll let you know that I was a State worker that was rift. Okay.
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When we were offered the three day furloughs, I would take it 'cause I knew we
didn't have money. You, if you work for the government, you've known for the
past couple of years we don't have money. We've been taking cuts to our
programs. I had to write grants to supplement my program. I had agreed to move
to Maui to keep the position. Okay. I left 25 years of private practice to become
a public servant because the only way I can service my community and do the
program was to work for the State, and I loved it. And I would go back now for
what I'm getting for unemployment. I still believe in my program. But you think
furlough sounds bad, try eliminated because my whole program was eliminated.
We're not coming back, our positions are gone. You cannot just go out and
recreate a program overnight. So when I heard the Mayor say oh, you know,
everybody's going to have to take their share. Well, hello, for the last year my
401k is now a 4-0. The kids are only going to school four days a week. Do you
even remember Aloha Airlines? We have been taking it. You knew this was
coming. I mean we had to plan ahead. I mean it's like the tsunami was coming.
And then we voted on this, we had union meetings and we agreed to these two
days. So then when she goes, well, we're only going take. . .she's proposing one
day, I was like, hello. . .(chuckle). „what happened here? Because now I hear
everybody--this is what happens, your operational budget gets cut, your programs
get cut. . .you know, you can't get that back. And I know it's hard, I know it's
hard as a County worker and even as a State worker when we were going to get
furloughed, but it's not forever, you plan for it. In public service the government
takes care of us for life, the public takes care of us for life. Even when we leave
our position, unless you leave early, you're taken care of for life. So there is a
tradeoff, sometimes we have to take a hit. And. . .so you can tell the Mayor, we
agreed to two days; why did she say one? I just can't see-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. MAPEL: --oh, I'm sorry--taking the operational budget.
I'll skip to the one other thing. I used to also be a paramedic. I wasn't
furloughed. I had a son and I changed careers. . . .(chuckle). . . So, I was a
paramedic in the dinosaur days before the, the chopper came into effect. And one
thing that happens on Molokai, and I think would help you understand a little bit
more, is that when we go to the scene and then we transport the patient to the
hospital, they are. . .you know, we stabilize them the best can, but they're already
deteriorating. And even in the hospital when we're packaging them to ship them
out, they're deteriorating and some of them crash on you, they just crash. And
once they get to a certain point or they crash, the fixed wing will not take them.
We can. . .I remember taking calls on the way to the airport, air ambulance on the
ground, and because our patient wasn't stable enough they wouldn't take 'em.
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We turn around, we bring 'em back to Molokai General. Fixed wing is not going
to take every case we want to send out. They have to be at a certain level or else
they have to have a respiratory tech on that plane.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. MAPEL: Oh, I'm sorry. So when I heard the Mayor say today but there are ground
ambulance, yes, we have excellent paramedics, they know which cases need to be
on that chopper. We don't have the time, the patient's case, care is going to
deteriorate or their condition is going to continue to deteriorate. We cannot work
miracles. The helicopter is the miracle. So thank you. Sorry to not be popular.
. . .(chuckle). . .
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. . . .(chuckle). . . Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, thank you. And, Ms. Mapel, may I ask you
what program that, that you were doing that was eliminated?
MS. MAPEL: I was with the Dental Hygiene Branch under the Dental Health Division.
I was the Maui County Dental Hygienist. I serviced Molokai, Lanai, and all of
Maui. There was only one position, neighbor island, and the rest were on Oahu.
So a total of us, 11, from my supervisor down to the clerk is totally gone now.
There is nobody else that can provide those services by law.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So all that dental hygiene services are eliminated,
total?
MS. MAPEL: Thirty-five plus years of developing a program.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. MAPEL: . . .our service was to go into the school, we did classroom education, I did
the children's screenings. If they needed care, I contacted their parents. If they
needed insurance, I helped them get their insurance. It was a gap, a stopgap
measure. . .that, you know, if private practice does this, we're a prevention
program.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, and let me tell you that you heard tonight
about maybe we're taken even a bigger, we may take even a bigger hit on our
TAT?
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MS. MAPEL: I heard. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So the two, so the one day may not last long and it
may become two days. I think it was-MS. MAPEL: Or it could become less. . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And it may be more. But, you know, what I
wanted to let you know that, that's all starting points. Everything has been a
starting point from the Mayor and it's up to us now to go and figure it out. So let
me assure you that we'll do our best, especially with the medevac, 'cause I
agree. . .no matter what, where you live, that is something that's really needed.
So thank you for your testimony.
MS. MAPEL: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much for being here. I certainly, you
know, appreciated hearing what you had to say. You know, this whole thing
about furloughs has been very difficult. It started with three days and then, you
know, it was two days and then we lost Fridays, and, you know, it's just gotten,
it's escalated worse and worse.
MS. MAPEL: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And when we heard the Mayor's Budget and she said one
day, I was kind of surprised because I think everybody was kind of prepared that
it would be two.
MS. MAPEL: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And it might very well be that, like Member Victorino
said, it's a beginning, and I guess when it becomes apparent about what we're
going to lose in order to do the one day, then we may have to look at two days. I
don't know what we're going to be looking at in the end, but, you know, everyday
this story gets worse. Today when we heard about them possibly taking half of
the TAT, there's another 8 million, and you add that to all the millions that we're
already short, and it's really, really scary. However, I think we're going to have
to make some priorities and determine what it is that can wait and we can do
without for another year, and what it is that we cannot wait and do without for
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another year. And for me, those are services to people. . .you know, some kind of
projects or infrastructure--maybe we can handle just hanging on for one more year
by our fingernails even though we don't like to delay that because eventually the
bill comes due. And, you know, if you don't repair, you don't repair, sooner or
later the repair is bigger. But we're going to have to make tough choices. But I
think where health and safety and getting people, you know, lifesaving services
will come first, it has to. So thank you for your perspective.
MS. MAPEL: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Ms. Mapel.
MS. MAPEL: . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for sharing your thoughts with regards to
the furlough. In our evening hearings, we haven't been hearing that concern as
much, but it's interesting that you shared this with us. Is that feeling kind of
pervasive in the community right now, somewhat surprised that Maui County is
only looking at one day furlough for County? And I know Oahu County, they're
looking at two days and the other counties as well. Is that sentiment going around
a lot, is like why Maui only one and we're, we're. . .well, the Mayor is
considering raising taxes and cutting services?
MS. MAPEL: I, I can't speak for the rest of the community. I think I was sensitive to it.
So when she said it, you know, it caught my ear real fast. I think a lot of people
have--I mean unless you're a County worker, of course--it probably didn't sink in.
Unless you understand how budgets work, that you don't understand that if they
take one, everything else gets cut. Like you said, it's a balancing act. And that,
you know, if you lose a program, it doesn't come back. These people are gone. If
we, you know, if we lose that helicopter, it's gone, it is gone. And so I think it's
understanding how the whole process works, not so much the furlough days. And
I will say the hardest thing that we went through last year was the constant oh,
three days, two days, maybe this, maybe that. I mean everyday it was another
story. Just pick a story and go with it. We, we can learn to live with it. But when
everyday the story changed, that's traumatic; that, that's hard to deal with, you
know. So, I know you're trying to work through the thing and you've got all
these hearings and all these people asking for things, but, you know, some things
you just, you stick with it. And when you're talking about people's lives and jobs
and things like that, you need to kind of pick how many days you're going to do,
`cause I think most of us were prepared for two, you know, and, and then all of a
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sudden one. Here we go again. . . .(chuckle). . . What if it ends up being three?
Oh, now you going look really bad. I mean. . . (chuckle). . . hello, you, you had it
at two. I think we all accepted two.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, thank you very much for bringing the
subject matter up.
MS. MAPEL: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions?
MS. MAPEL: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you again. Kim Whitman, Kim Whitman.
MR. SCHAEFER (from the audience): I have Kim Svetin's testimony written.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we'll accept the written testimony.
MS. LYNN (from the audience): While you're accepting that, can I take a quick picture?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, yeah. I, I wasn't going to stay in the front.
MS. LYNN (from the audience): Can, can everybody start at this end? Le Anne was
saying that she's. . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah. Yeah.
MS. LYNN (from the audience): She teaches our, our. . .she's a person that we hired to
teach our department people how to do things. So she made these (inaudible).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thanks from starting on this end. Thank you very
much.
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MS. LYNN: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Gandharva Mahina Hou Ross.
MR. ROSS: Aloha kakou. Aloha, Council Members. Mahalo for coming tonight and
sticking through this meeting. I know you guys have a very busy schedule.
Actually, I'm a subsistence taro farmer in Halawa Valley. So it seems like where
is that on the agenda? But anyway, Molokai Youth Center has been coming down
recently working with us. So, I'd like to put a small bit of supporting for them.
Also, I'm the Hawaiian Language Immersion teacher at Molokai High School. I
service 20 students, 9th through 12 th grade, and we're also Women In Technology,
MEDB--what is it called?--we have a lab and they provide lots of technology
support, computers, training in GIS, GPS. We do lots of place-based education.
I'm a science teacher who also teaches immersion. So and recently we've been
doing. . .making our focus on place-based education where we've been visiting
various shoreline ecosystems to do scientific inquiry, and we've had a lot of
support from the Women In Technology with underwater cameras; GPS; some
training how to use, setup the web, web pages and things like that. And I'd like to
invite you guys to come down April 9 th and 10th , we'll be at Makena Beach Resort
with, for the First Annual Hawaii State EAST Conference. We'll be one of the
schools attending. I think there's schools from all over the State, and we'll be
presenting our project, some of the things we do with place-based education on
Molokai.
I'd also like to speak on behalf of the MEC , bus. I'm the cross-country coach at
Molokai High School and without the bus, I don't think most of my students
would be allowed to come to practice and make it home. I live on the east end in
Wailua Valley. I remember when I was an athlete in high school, after crosscountry practice, baseball practice, I used to hitch home, hitchhike home in the
dark. I used to reach home 8, 9 o'clock, do my homework and stuff like that. So
the students nowadays have a wonderful opportunity that helps us continue our
excellence in athletics. So, I would hate to see that be impacted. I know a lot of
them cannot afford the fares and things like that. What else I wanted to talk
about? . . .(chuckle). . . Basically, mahalo for coming and listening to our
concerns, and I know it's a very difficult time, but mahalo for all of your help and
any of the, all of the things that you do for our community. Mahalo, aloha.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Excuse me.
Member Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I didn't get your name, I'm sorry.
MR. ROSS: Gandharva Mahina Hou Ross.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you.
MR. ROSS: When I was in high school, they, I was known as Gandi but-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Gandi, okay.
MR. ROSS: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then. . .you did, you do so much. First of all,
do you ever sleep?
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean, brah. . .I mean you is got it, you got it
down.
MR. ROSS: I know. You was out there telling me how busy you was, I was thinking
hmm. . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, yeah, but.. .
MR. ROSS: . . .last night I was in the lo'i till about midnight planting.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Gee.
MR. ROSS: So usually we plant on full moon 'cause that's when it's best. I haven't
been speaking in public for a while. Normally I come out for the water hearings
and stuff like that, but.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. ROSS: . . .we've been getting a lot of support from MEDB, and recently we
received a grant to help go to the conference as well as more on-island travel to
continue our place-based education. So we wanted to come and say mahalo to all,
for all the support.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you very much.
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MR. ROSS: Mahalo, aloha.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you.
Annette Pauole-Ahakuelo.

Bobby Naki.

Bobby Naki?

MS. PAUOLE-AHAKUELO: Aloha and good evening, the Honorable Maui County
Council. First of all, I want to say thank you for coming to Molokai. I want to
express to you at this time my gratitude humbly for your support for the Kuhao
Business Center. Never in my life, at this point in life in my mid-60s I ever
thought that I would find my second calling in life. I cannot express to you how
much I love my job. And I thought I loved my job with my previous employer,
too, but I. . .when I look back at it, you think about what I'm doing, and what it is
is giving back to the community I'm very humbled to have such an honor to be
helping the Molokai residents. I sincerely mean that. It's been the most
gratifying job, I must say, that I've had ever. And as I ask, you know, ask a lot of
my entrepreneurs who solicit the center is. . .it's come talk story. It's not like oh,
let's make a business appointment. It's Molokai style, we run it very
Molokai-friendly. Right now I'm blessed enough to, be fortunate enough to be
assisting the Molokai agricultural community with a large grant that was given to
the island by. . .Senator Inouye's office, and that's the MADP grant. Last year,
we only, we were appropriated $50,000 for the entire island. But this year we're
super blessed with $200,000. So, I just got through. . .conducting quite a bit of
workshops, and I must say the response in the agricultural community has been
great. Especially at this kind of bleak time, during the hard times when things are
so sort of negative all over, you know, this really lifted their spirits. And I
promised to you last year that I would continue and really work hard to try and
not only helping them with their business plans, they're, you know, overall but,
you know, spiritually. It's almost sort of like a pep rally, you know. During these
bleak, hard times you have to look at the really human side of getting people
inspired and motivated. And this is why this past year I really did a lot of work
for aloha they say, for kokua, you know, to malama the island because the people
here on Molokai are so deserving of getting, you know, because getting extra
help. I come with a lot of experience and I'm going to continue, with your help,
of course, to help the Molokai island community to prosper. But I just wanted to
come here tonight to tell you from the bottom of my heart, mahalo nui loa for
everybody here, everybody on the island-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
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MS. PAUOLE-AHAKUELO: --for being very kind, and hopefully you continue to look
on Molokai very kindly, too. Okay. Otherwise, thank you very much. And I
already gave you my annual report, which I really look forward to putting
together for you folks more on a user-friendly kind of thing, large
print. ..(chuckle). . if you're my age, large print and a lot of pictures. But
anyway, again mahalo nui loa for coming and hopefully I'll see you folks all next
year, too. And thank you, Gladys.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for Annette? Seeing none,
thank you very much.
MS. PAUOLE-AHAKUELO: Okay. Thank you again. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. KAAHANUI: Aloha, my name is Stan Kaahanui, Jr., and I'm here in support
of--no, this is fine--I'm here in support of Kuhao Business Center. Kuhao
Business Center is a very valuable resource for Molokai on so many levels. I can
say this with confidence since I was an integral part of its opening. Not only is it
a very needed organization for the community, but it continues to offer services
like job training, resume writing, business plan development, computer training,
agricultural workshops, managing, branding, cop writing. . .copywriting, and
many other essential seminars and workshops. Aside from the seminars and
workshops, it offers the community a place to have access to computers and other
valuable equipment that would otherwise not be available in our underserved
community Building a strong economic base for the people to do the simplest
things like checking e-mails, a space to hold meetings and exchange creative
business ideas make it more invaluable. I could go on and on about the benefits
that Kuhao Business Center offers here on Molokai, but I'll let the numbers speak
for themselves. There's not a time that I've gone into Kuhao Business Center that
I'm not greeted and treated with warm and welcoming attitude from, by both the
staff and the administrator. This speaks volumes of the leadership and genuine
care of the entire center. I am most impressed with the cleanliness and efficiency
that I receive. . . --(change of tape, start 3a)-- . . .their eagerness to assist in
anyway that they can and ability to service the community is phenomenal. I could
not imagine a better service to Molokai with our unemployment being in the state
that it is. It would be a great injustice and disservice to the island if Kuhao
Business Center were cut, were to cut its staff and management's hours or, more
importantly, close its doors permanently. Our already crippled community would
suffer even more. Having said that, I speak tonight in great support of Kuhao
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Business Center and the community to continue this much needed and long
overdue center. I know that I'm not alone when I say that Molokai greatly needs
and deserves what the Business Center offers as a means of hope for our severely
economically-stricken community Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Malia.
MS. AKUTAGAWA: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Malia Akutagawa. I am
with the Molokai Rural Development Project. In 2004, we expanded the Kuhao
Business Center and hired Annette to be the Business Assistant Facilitator. It was
very successful and you hanai'd this project. And I thank you very much for
continuously supporting the Kuhao Business Center. On Molokai, the heart and
soul of our island is mom-and-pop's establishments, and it gives me much
pleasure to see that we continue to create more small businesses and uplift the
people and give them a sense of dignity and a sense of autonomy by having these
small businesses. I did the statistics in 2009 to see how successful this project
was, and I found that 161 businesses were created through this initiative. And we
have many products in, in the stores: Eleanor's Sweet Potato Chips, Molokai
Meli with the whole family doing honey sticks and the, even the kids doing bees
wax and dressing with honey. So we have lot of talented people here, and the
Kuhao Business Center is sort of a gathering place for, for all people who have
hopes and dreams of owning their own business and taking themselves out of
poverty. So, I thank you so much for your support of the Kuhao Business Center,
and I want to say that Annette is so welcoming and very professional, as well as
Tessie, and they've done a tremendous service to our community So, I wholly
endorse them and I ask that you continue to support them. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Kimberly Svetin. Kimberly Svetin? Claree [sic] Mawae,
Claree [sic] Mawae.
MS. MAWAE: Clare Mawae. . . . (chuckle). . . Aloha, Councilmen and woman, my
name is Clare Mawae. I serve several purposes. First of all, I am a small business
owner on this island, just made 11 years. I'm also a single mother of three
children so. . .and I sit on the Board of the Molokai Visitors Association. So since
we've been talking about the MEO and the Youth Center, I tell you what, they are
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the best. And as a, as a mom with my kids, I need the services and MEO is doing
an incredible job and the Youth Center does a fantastic job.
I also sit on the Board of the Molokai Visitors Association and one of the key
words that is used is education. Also, one of the other key words that I say,
Molokai is very different. We need a certain type of visitor here that helps to
stimulate the economy. I don't want to keep a long speech, but we have a video
that was made up by someone from this island, and basically we got a video for
each, each of you that you can take a look, and again we stress the word
education. So we ask if you can support the Maui Visitors Bureau, as they are the
ones that do fund us here on Molokai. And it is very important that we do have
our office 'cause our Director Julie does an incredible job, you know, whose from
this island, a mother of many children. . .I mean a woman of many, many talents,
and she goes around and educates all the travel agents, the travel riders so that we
can have the right kind of visitor that can come to this island and appreciate what
this island has to offer. So, I'm going to give you all a video.
Note: Pause while Ms. Mawae distributes a DVD to the Council Members.

So, I'd like to thank you for your time. This video was made here on Molokai,
the music is here, from here as well, and I think this will give you a good idea of
what the Molokai Visitors Association is trying to do. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
MS. MAWAE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Steven Ammagi [sic]. Steven?
MR. AMMASI: Hello, Councilmen
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MR. AMMASI: I'd just like to say two things. One for the paramedic, for helping me
out. I was a patient of their medevac, and I appreciate there was those guys, I
give them a big applause. And the other one is the MEO van. You guys
shouldn't, you know, do, do away with 'em because it's. . .like me, I only, I only
get this transportation, I only can go certain areas, and I've been going to the east
end and, you know, the west end, and it really help out a lot. And I'm only
a. . .part-time here, six months here, six months back in the mainland. So with
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their help and all that things, I appreciate those guys and hopefully you guys think
about it. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Jera Pali.
MS. PALI: Good evening, my name is Jera Pali and I'm a Site Manager for the Paxen
Group. I am here to support MEO. The company that I work for delivers two
work incentive programs, and they're called About Face and Jump Start. Jump
Start is geared towards the middle school and About Face is for the high school.
And what my program does is they get paid to learn life skills. They just show up
with a positive attitude and, you know, it's a great benefit for them. And how
MEO has supported my company throughout the years since we landed in 2006 is
that they provide free transportation for our youth. And our program, we give
priority to those families who are already at risk, you know, they have, they're
either on free reduced lunch or they receive TANF funding. So if MEO wasn't
here to give free transportation, I'm pretty sure most of my candidates would
probably dropout because it would be like how are they going to get home after
school. My program runs right after school 2:15 to 4:45, MEO comes at
5 o'clock, they get on the bus and they get home. So, I really appreciate MEO.
They, they've been awesome. I also have my program running in the summer and
MEO steps in out of their ordinary schedule to accommodate my program, and
my program is, it runs like a summer school. So again, you know, the, the
benefits of the youth attending my program is that they, they learn life skills, they
learn how to balance a checkbook. So we're helping them become productive
citizens after high school. We want them to think further goals and everything
like that. So please continue to support MEO, that's, that's what I ask for.
They're, they're awesome.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ms. Pali. This side. That's okay. How many
students, how many students do you have in your program here on Molokai?
MS. PALI: I run a Fall, Spring, and Summer session.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
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MS. PALI: . . .and with the funds that we have, I can only have ten slots per program.
So right now I have a Spring session and I have 20 slots each pending an
additional 5. So it, it varies, but the average is ten slots per session, per program.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, per program, per session. So you have two
programs and.. .
MS. PALI: Twenty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So 20 and you're hoping to put 5, 5 more in?
MS. PALI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I just. . .in December, I was at the Iao
School graduation-MS. PALI: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and terrific job and I thank you very much 'cause
you guys really take these kids and give 'em that self-confidence, that ability to,
to really rise above what is around them and then really give themselves a chance
to get somewhere. So, thank you very much.
MS. PALI: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
MS. PALI: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. Just one quick question.
MS. PALI: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: After you mentioned the economic status with the kids.. .
MS. PALI: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .with the kids that you're serving, these are the kids
that would have a hard time with those dollars coming and going to the center?
MS. PALI: Oh, yes, definitely. So it's. . .you know, I, I should bring some testimonies
from the kids, too, 'cause some testimonies are really heartfelt Like one kid said
when he came to the Summer pro..., Summer and Fall program, he was able to
save money to buy Christmas presents for his family, and he doesn't think about
himself. That's one thing about the Molokai youth, you know, they appreciate the
little things and they don't only think about themselves, it's like family. So it's
just really, really heartfelt.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. You know, it's really important that people
like you come out. You know, when we're looking at bunches of papers and
figures, they don't have names and they don't have faces. But when you see the
names and faces and hear the stories, you look at it very differently. Thank you.
MS. PALI: Cool. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Robert Stephenson, followed by Valerie Hart.
MR. STEPHENSON: Aloha and good evening, Council Chair Mateo, Finance
Committee Chair Pontanilla, and Honorable Council Members. My name is
Robert Stephenson and I am the President of the Molokai Chamber of Commerce,
and I appreciate the opportunity to speak with you this evening. First and
foremost, I want to say thank you to the Mayor, Mayor Tavares, Maui County
Council Chair Danny Mateo, and the County Office of Economic Development
for the continued support of the Molokai Chamber of Commerce, our members,
and the island of Molokai. Some of the programs that you support here in the
island, the MEO bus, the transportation, is a very necessary service for our
seniors.
Also, the Kuhao Business Center that provides job training, entrepreneurial help,
and as Annette mentioned, they worked with USDA with the Molokai
Agricultural Development Program that helped provide funding to local farmers.
Another program that you folks support that we're very appreciative of is the
Molokai Visitors Association. So thank you for that.
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And as you know, each year the Molokai Chamber of Commerce in partnership
with the Maui County Office of Economic Development and support from Mayor
Tavares and Councilman Mateo, hosts our annual Business and Food Expo. This
event is of key importance in helping the dozens of small businesses and
entrepreneurs on Molokai gain increased visibility for their products and services,
and it provides a much needed economic stimulus for our island economy. Last
year at the Seventh Annual Business and Food Expo we had over 40 vendors
participate, exposing them to a crowd of over 1,000 attendees who might have
otherwise not become familiar with the goods and services and products these
vendors offer here on Molokai. This event helps the small businesses help
themselves, for these hardworking and innovative people are what keep the
economy of Molokai going. Many of them have multiple jobs and, in some cases,
multiple businesses because here on Molokai good enough just isn't good enough.
Here on Molokai, we know that to achieve the results we desire we must put forth
an extraordinary effort. But given the challenges of our limited infrastructure and
reduced economies of scale, we constantly face seemingly insurmountable
obstacles, so it's crucial that our community continue to receive financial support
for Maui County. In these tough economic times, everyone faces challenges, but
some of the greatest challenges can be felt the strongest in our small, rural,
isolated communities and in Hawaii, it doesn't get much smaller, more rural, and
more isolated than right here on the island of Molokai. And with all of the
increased needs of our community and the decreased budgets, we need to do
something to continue to stimulate our economy and support the private sector
that creates jobs and the much needed tax revenue.
We're very grateful for your continued support and your ongoing commitment to
doing your best to do what's right for our residents, our businesses, and the entire
island community of Molokai, an important part of Maui County.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. STEPHENSON: May I have another minute to finish?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Go ahead.
MR. STEPHENSON: Thank you. As the President of the Molokai Chamber of
Commerce, I humbly ask that you include the funding for the 2010, 8 th Annual
Molokai Business and Food Expo in the Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Budget. This
funding gives a return on the investment. It pays dividends, it creates revenue for
the Molokai people. And on behalf of the Molokai Chamber of Commerce, I also
respect, respectfully request that you continue to provide the financial resources
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and infrastructure support to the many businesses and service organizations on
Molokai that rely upon it for their well being. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again.
MR. STEPHENSON: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nancy Lee Potter. Oh, I'm sorry, Valerie Hart, followed by
Nancy Lee Potter.
MS. HART: Evening, Council Members. My name's Valerie Hart and I'm an
Educational Assistant at Kilohana School. I'm here to ask you to continue
supporting the Molokai Economic Development Board. I have been a student
from last year. We got to, I got to learn how to do GIS, and right now I have
partnered with a teacher, she has--at Kilohana School--a native Hawaiian garden
going and then they're going to plant a vegetable garden so that the kids can learn
self-sufficiency and self-sustainability. And then for the native Hawaiian garden,
they can learn about how important the forest is, you know, because the whole
ahupua' a is connected. My part is I'm, we're hoping that we can get the kids to
map out their garden, you know, they're going to check, they're going to test out
the PH and then we're going to. . .put it into a map. So, I'd like. . .I'm here to ask
you to continue supporting the Molokai Economic Development Board.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nancy Lee Potter.
MS. POTTER: Aloha, Council Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MS. POTTER: Councilman Nishiki, my name is Nancy Lee Potter. I don't believe
we've met. Congratulations. Thank you all for coming to Molokai to hear the
concerns and needs of the people. I'm here today to speak in support of continued
funding for the Molokai Humane Society. That's part of our Board over there,
one of our vets, and our Chair will speak to you in just a minute. As I'm sure--oh,
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and our Executive Director got kicked by a horse, so she won't be here today.
. . .Sorry. As I'm sure you know, the Molokai Humane Society provides a
veterinarian to this island on an average of two days a week. This is the only
medical care the creatures of this abundant island have access to. Even access to
vets on other islands has recently been drastically reduced due to the Island, two
Island Air cutting back on flights. Your money is being well spent. In 2009,
more than 650 animals were sterilized and well over 2,500 animals--cats, dogs,
horses, cattle, goats. . . (chuckle). . .rabbits—have been taken care of with your
$40,000. That's pretty amazing. I'm making it my mission to find alternative
methods of funding and have almost completed one of my first grant applications.
But these things take time and an organization does not always get the grants that
they apply for. As many of you know, I'm often successful in my attempts in life.
So, I humbly ask for you, you for your trust and patience by continuing the
funding in its current level until the Molokai Humane Society proves
self-sufficient through grants, and I'm writing just as fast as my fingers will go.
Councilmember Mateo--hi, Danny--can verify that the heart of this island is
bigger than those of all the other islands combined. That heart breaks every time
an animal dies because of lack of medical care. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, Lorna Hulzing [sic].
MS. HUIZINGA (from the audience): Huizinga.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Huizinga. Thank you.
MS. HUIZINGA: Hi, I'm Lorna Huizinga. I'm the President and Treasurer of the
Molokai Humane Society. I just want to say everything Nancy said, you know,
the animals just really need the funding and, and every penny that we get from the
County goes to very good use. And just continue our funding if you can, you
know, what it is now. And I have some paper. . .our fund, you know, our report,
so you can take a look at it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Baron Okimoto. Baron Okimoto, followed by Lynn DeCoite.
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MR. OKIMOTO: Hi, my name is Baron Okimoto. I'm here in support for the helicopter.
The helicopter saved my son's life. He got into a critical car accident. Without
the helicopter--because they transported right from the scene to the helicopter. He
first had to fly to Maui. He took five pints of blood in Maui. Then when they
flew him to Oahu, he needed six more pints. Without the helicopter, he would've
died on Molokai waiting for the fixed airplane to come. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much. Lynn DeCoite, followed by Cheryl Davis.
MS. DeCOITE: Aloha, Chair Danny Mateo and Council Members. My name is
Lynn DeCoite, a sweet potato farmer on the island of Molokai. And I sit on
numerous boards, stemming from farm service agencies, County committees, to
the Molokai Chamber Foundation, to the MIS Advisory Board. I truly understand
what agriculture is about. I come to you to ask, seeking funding on their behalf
for the Molokai Ag Country Fair. We are putting on an event on May 1 st , and the
intention of the event is to bring awareness, to bring us resources. It's farmers,
it's farmers from all different perspectives, stemming from production farmers,
produce, to (inaudible) farmers, to organic farms, to hydroponics--bringing
awareness in our community about livestock, about its animals, and to display a
whole variety of what Molokai has to offer. I come before you asking your
support on that funding. Myself, as the President of the Molokai Homestead
Farmers Alliance, is spearheading the event with the umbrella of the Molokai
Ahupua'a which consists of seven homestead associations on the island. I've
partnered up with you folks at the County level with OED who has also
contributed funding, as well as Farm Service Agency and the Department of
Hawaiian Home Lands. I think at this point we have just about everybody
onboard, and I invite all of you to come and attend this event. It looks like it's
going to be a nice, fun, educational event. And, and I ask for your help and the
continued support for this. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Lynn, nice to see you. When is this going to
happen, do you have a date?
MS. DeCOITE: It's on May 1 st of this year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions, Members? Seeing none, thank you.
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MS. DeCOITE: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Cheryl Davis, followed by Lori Buchanan.
MS. DAVIS: Aloha, my name is Cheryl Davis, and I'd like to say thank you for coming
to Molokai to hear the testimonies. I am here to testify on how important the med
chopper is for Molokai. My son. . .in April of 2008, my son was involved in a
very bad car accident, and when the paramedics got there on the scene, they
decided that my son needed to be choppered out and he was sent to Maui
Memorial. And it was, it's such a lifesaving. . .program that, you know, this little
island of Molokai needs. I said our small, little hospital only can supply us so
much and the chopper does so much for us, and I say thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Lori Buchanan, followed by Greg Jenkins.
MS. BUCHANAN: Aloha, Council. Thank you very much for coming. My name is
Lori Buchanan, I'm the Field and Outreach Coordinator for the Molokai/Maui
Invasive Species Committee. Some of you have seen me already. . .talking about
budget and saving money for conservation. We always think that that's the last
thing to go. So, I just wanted to let you know what we do on Molokai. There's
two full-time staff, that's myself and a field tech. And while I was waiting for the
flight from Honolulu to Molokai tonight, my field technician called and informed
me that an entity imported 180 plants from the Big Island with coqui, and so my
field tech had to respond to that situation, which is the third coqui introduction to
Molokai. And people, they don't hear it and that's because we respond as soon as
we can and we, we try to nip things in the bud. And the same can be said for a
29-year old man who came in with two children to my office with stings all over
their body from upside down mangrove jellyfish, and he brought it in a bucket
and we went down to the wharf and the whole swimming, designated swimming
area at the wharf was filled with these huge jellyfish that fix themselves to the
ground. And when you disturb the area near them, they spring out all these
floating stingers that just float freely in the water, and you don't hear about this
kind of stuff. But this is the kind of stuff that we respond to. And so your money
is well spent.
Note: Due to technical difficulties, there was a loss of recording for approximately five
minutes. Therefore, the following portion of the transcript is provided in summary
format

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 29, 2010 (Molokai District)

Lori Buchanan continues to testify in support of funding for the Molokai/Maui
Invasive Species Committee. She also testifies in support of funding for the air
ambulance, and conservation and watershed protection. Ms. Buchanan further
requests assistance in obtaining the required permits for the planned Veterans
Center on Molokai as well as whatever expanded presence the Department of
Planning may need to stay current with planning approvals.
Greg Jenkins testifies in support of funding for the air ambulance.
Note: Recording is restored The following transcript returns to verbatim format

MR. JENKINS: --(change of tape, start 3b)-- . . .so I, I ask you to consider, as you've
heard from many people tonight, the continuation of that funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Janice Kalanihuia, followed by Godfrey Akaka.
MS. KALANIHUIA: Aloha. I'm going to ready my testimony. It won't be nearly as
entertaining as Scotty's, but I'm going to do my best.
My name is Janice Kalanihuia. I've served as President of Molokai General
Hospital for eight years. Previous to that, my position at Molokai General was as
the Director of the Women's Health Center. I'm here tonight because I
understand the funding for the Maui Medevac is in jeopardy. And I guess I want
to say right now that I'm preaching to the choir, at least from what I've read in the
newspaper today and it was also on the news at 6 o'clock that you folks are in
support of, of the medevac. So, I will trust that you will take my message back to
the Mayor and to Mr. Medeiros. He was mentioned in the paper this morning.
Molokai General Hospital is a 15-bed rural hospital. It's the only 24/7 provider of
health care on this island. We are one of nine critical access hospitals in the State,
and with perhaps the exc..., exception of Kauai Veterans, arguably the best
equipped. We have emergency room physicians in-house 24/7, in addition we
have digital imaging. We have cardiac monitors and sophisticated intubation
equipment. All of our nurses are certified in Advanced Cardiac Life Support, a
rigorous course designed to prepare them for major cardiac events. Even with
great equipment and trained and available staff, many situations simply call for
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immediate transfer to a higher level of care. Most often this transfer needs to be
completed within a very short period of time to ensure the best possible patient
outcome.
As you can imagine, I've seen some pretty harrowing things in, in my years at
Molokai General, and some of them have ended in the worst of outcome.
When you deal with a pregnant women, woman, the stakes are unusually high.
Pregnancy is normal and when all goes well, you really don't need anybody
around to help, things are just going to happen. But when complications arise,
you've got two patients to take care of. The complexity is very high and time is
of the essence. In most cases, a fixed wing aircraft is fine, but in some cases like
when the placenta is coming out first or the patient is hemorrhaging, three or four
hours to the receiving hospital is just not good enough. A helicopter is the only
way to get that mom and baby out of Molokai to have the best possible outcome.
When you look at other medical emergencies that might need immediate
transport, trauma is a situation where you have the most immediate access, you
need the most immediate access to a higher level of care, and you've heard that
tonight, you know, real people who have been touched by this, this helicopter.
Time makes the difference in saving life or limb or cognitive function and relies
on rapid transport of a critically ill patient. In those cases, a helicopter is the only
way out--literally and figuratively.
Rural parts of Maui County, and West Maui in some instances, need this vital
resource.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. KALANIHUIA: In addition to picking up the patient after he's been stabilized in
the local emergency room, the helicopter is able to pick up patients at the scene.
And you've heard that as well, it's invaluable.
The amount of funding is small compared to what it is able to accomplish for
many families. I want you to put yourself or your loved one in a car accident on
Molokai for a moment. Whether he or she dies depends solely on how fast we
can get them to Queen's or to Maui Memorial. You'll, you'll want that chopper
in a second, I can promise you.
This is a tough year for funding in every county and for every business. And that
said, there's a few things that transcend fiscal consideration, and I really believe
that this is one of them. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
MS. KALANIHUIA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Godfrey Akaka, followed by Eileen Naaman.
MR. AKAKA: Aloha.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MR. AKAKA: My name is Godfrey Akaka. I'm a resident here on Molokai. My son
received services from the air medevac--of course, I'm speaking in behalf of that.
He received a life-threatening injury, had a punctured lung. He was sent to
Molokai General, sent out to the airport on the air medevac and from, from there
he was taken with the helicopter straight to Queen's where he was able to get
ready to surgery. Of course, you know, prepping for surgery is at least two hours.
So when you talk about the golden hour, you know, every minute counts. If he
had to wait for the air ambulance, the fixed wing, we don't know if he would have
survived or not. But, you know, we know that it played a key role in his survival
and for his full recovery. I just want to thank Scotty Schaefer for putting the
program together and all the hard work that he's done, and all of you that support
the air medevac. I was disappointed to hear that it's up on the chopping block,
you know, something that is life, something that is there to preserve life. But I'm
confident that all of you is going to go back and, and fight for this, for us. Thank
you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Eileen Naaman, followed by Sean Simon.
MS. NAAMAN: Hello, Council Members. Thank you for your time. I am one of the
visiting vets that helps the Molokai Humane Society, and I'm from Makawao,
Maui. I've been coming since late 2005 when Dr. Rodrigues passed. And I was
told by several concerned people on Maui that Molokai really needed some help,
and I came thinking, well, you know, I'll be here just a little bit until there's
another Dr. Rodrigues who probably everybody knows did 2 1/2 days a week, I
heard, for almost 30 years. And here I am on my fifth year, and what I have seen
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in the five years is a community that is really, really beautiful and, and this has
been a very nice experience for me tonight. I know the needs are extremely great
for this community. But the Molokai Humane Society with the small funding that
it's gotten has just--and the women that have carried, the people that have carried
the torch for this. . .animals of the community and actually, very importantly, the
people of the community because ani..., human, animal bond is just invaluable,
has been great. And so I want to stay and help and, as Nancy explained quite
well, we're working very, very diligently on getting private funding. We have a
short-term lease that makes it very difficult to apply for the grants, but we're
working hard on that, and I would love to see it continue to be supported. It has
created a job for a local person. There's also some people that come through that
are on a work program that people. . .I don't completely understand what group
they're coming from, they do short-term requirements that they have to do. And
as the one young lady spoke here, I've met several young locals that are more
than welcome to watch me and learn, and I love to teach the kids and I hope
someday Molokai has its own local vet, but the funding is so important. And they
have a little website, you can see they've gotten containers. We now have some
electricity. I don't have to wear a headlamp to do surgery.
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. NAAMAN: I've done probably 800 spays and neuters. Today, I worked on a goat
and I've got two hog dogs that have been gored that I've worked on, and the
people wait, you know. And the one Humane Society employee calls me and we
leave some supplies there and we do what we can until a vet comes, and it's just a
great, great program. So. . .I had a hit-by-car today. You know, that's lucky that
I'm there when it happens. Otherwise, they're very innovative and what they've
done with the container and the volunteer program, it's, it's really beautiful for
the community Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sean Simon.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (from the audience): He left.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sean Simon left? Jenny Senas. Jenny, coming? Okay. And
following Jenny would be Gladys Kupau.
MS. SENAS: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Jenny Senas and I am here
in support of Hale Ho' omalu, which is a shelter for battered women and children.
I just, I just want to support the program. It's, it's very vital here. We have only
one shelter on this island. We have many battered women and children. Without
this shelter, they would have no safe place to go. I have worked for Hale
Ho'omalu now for almost 12 years, and I thank you for your support, you know,
without funding we wouldn't have it.
I also support MEO bus service or any service under MEO. I also support the
Youth Center. All of these programs along with the shelter go hand in hand.
When we have, when we have clients at the shelter, they need the bus service to
get to doctors, yeah, to get to. . .to do their shopping. We're not always available
to give them the service of. . .providing them service to come to Kaunakakai to go
to wherever they need to go. So they will utilize the bus service. So it's really,
really important that we can get that. Any program, even with the Youth Center.
We have clients at the shelter, their children will use the Youth Center. So like I
said, all of these programs go hand in hand. It doesn't matter, on this island we
need all the services. We are very limited and we just appreciate all that, all that
you can give us. . .whatever it is. Helicopter. I have never used it. I don't know
anybody personally who has used it. But you know what, it could be me. I could
fall down here right now, hit my head, and they gotta send me out.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (from the audience): . . . (inaudible).. .
MS. SENAS: And, you know.. .
AUDIENCE: . . .(laughter). . .
MS. SENAS: Thank you. But, you know, it could be something like that. I mean you
just never know the service, I may need the service today, tonight. And I just
want to show my support for them, 'cause they're here and they're here to help us
and without funding they can't help us. So, I just wanted to also ask the
community, if you support any of these programs, please show a hand of support.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Gladys Kupau, followed by Charlotte Seales.
MS. KUPAU: Aloha, everyone. My name is Gladys Kupau, and I am here in support of
Hale Ho' omalu. I have been a victim of domestic violence for like over 20
something years, but today I can stand here and say that I am a survivor of
domestic violence.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
MS. KUPAU: Thank you. I had the opportunity to use the Women's Shelter as a safety
zone for me. I was able to go there for safe, to gain safetiness [sic] and it is a
gated community where, you know, I felt comfortable and it is in a secluded area
where it's really quiet. The advocates there are very awesome. They really
helped me with their empowering words and they were always there, you know,
there's always somebody there for me throughout the day. And the first
time--I've been there on several occasions, but the first time I went there, I went
with three of my children and they. . .the staff there, who are very helpful,
because of my critical situation of domestic violence, I had the opportunity of
having them help me with transportation, safely transporting my children to
school, and also taking me to the, to my appointments and to. . .like courts and
stuff. So, you know, without--I just got information that because of, due to
budget cuts, that this shelter might be closing down. But I come here to ask that
you folks fund, continue funding them so that they can stay open because even
though I'm a survivor today, today, I believe that, you know, one day who knows,
you know, I just might need the shelter and if it shuts down, you know, I wouldn't
have a safe haven to go to.
And also, you know, I do support the MEO bus because my children use that
transportation for afterschool programs. Because of my busy schedule I'm unable
to pick them up from their afterschool curriculums that they do. So they use, do
utilize the MEO bus to get home after school. So thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Charlotte Seales. Members, Charlotte is the last person who
signed up for public testimony.
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MS. SEALES (from the audience): . . .(inaudible). . .
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I know everybody, you know, are waiting for your
testimony.
MS. SEALES: . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But I, I need to make this announcement. If there's anyone out
there that hasn't provided public testimony and want to do public testimony,
please come up and sign up. If not, Charlotte.
MS. SEALES: Okay. Aloha, County Councilmen, thank you--and, and woman--for
coming from Maui to travel over on the John Deere airline--you know, I call that
the Mokulele.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. SEALES: But what I wanted to say, I sat back there and I'm in awe as how much
our community really works hard. . .and, and they're so committed to whatever
they support. And I'm so proud of all of them. And I'm here tonight also--I live
18 miles Manae to the east and. . .yeah, and the Hale Kula that I work at is at
about 13, 14 miles, and 20 children ride the MEO bus to come to our Hale Kula.
We only have about 90 children. So we could get, it could, you know, if things
was to change and this is--what I, what I found in my box today to, to let the
MEO riders know that there is going to start to be a charge, and so they ride to
and from four days a week because of the furlough. So I see that, I, I've used it
myself. On Wednesday and Friday we can call MEO ahead of time, they come to
your home, to your hale, they pick you up, they bring you to town and the
designated spot, and they bring you back to your hale only on those days. So it's
very, very vital as you all know. As all of you have ho'olohe tonight, that
everything is important. We all need the services. It all interwinds like a mat,
like a weaving of a mat.
Also, I, I support the Hale Ho'omalu. That's a key word, of safety. If we only
get ho'okahi wale no, only one, where else can women go with children? How is
that feeling feels when you go somewhere when you're not at your hale and
something is so uncomfortable, and they're crying, mommy, where we're going to
stay, we gotta stay here tonight, what is this place? And when you have been
there, you've walked in it, you feel for them and you're coming, you know, to a
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strange place but, at the same time, you know a place of safety of the advocates as
the woman, young woman said before me. They are trained to protect you. They
try to empower you, but you make the final decision, that self-determination of
what you can do, of what you should do. And a lot us go back and sometimes
things get maika'i
But also, I support the, the medical helicopter. Twenty years ago, I wasn't as
fortunate. My daughter was 16 years old and she died in a car accident, not on
Molokai, but she died on Oahu. So as I hear the parents tonight here that their
son, their daughter lived because of this. . .you know, for me at that moment, we
had a doctor's call at 10:30 at night to tell us that she didn't make it. She would
be 30, 33 years this year. But I holomua, I go forward, and I'm just so proud of
all the people here of their commitment and the cause that they believe in,
because we need each other, we lean on each other. And I'm so proud even
though, you know--not past my bedtime, I usually stay up till 11:00-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. SEALES: Anyway, three minutes. But I support MEO, I support the helicopter
because, like Jenny said, we don't know when we going use 'em, when we going
need it, and it's so crucial, time is essence. And, and but to hear the families that
come and say that they have experienced death--and I know it's very difficult for
all of you to make this decision because there's so many good projects, so many
things that we need. . .you know, one needs the other.
And even the Humane Society, everybody who, who get the human family--I
know it's three minutes--but they get 'ilios, they get popokis, you know, and
they. . .you know something, you get hard time, you ask them, they try to waive
some of that cost just to get in. I love that, that's what it is. The network, it's
completely. . .we network it, everything--from Lori to everyone here tonight and
those that already holomua. And I'm going home 18 miles-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. SEALES: Okay, sorry. But, again, everybody mahalo again. . .but women need a
safe place to go, they do. We only get one place, no more choice after that. What
we're gonna do? Especially for the children--strange place, no more clothes, no
more food, no more money, and no more car. And we need the transportation,
you know.
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So I, I'm just grateful for all of you to be here to ho'olohe. Mahalo nui and we'll
see you again and on the television. Thank you very much for informing us.
Okay. Mahalo, Molokai. I love you all. Okay, aloha.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much. At this time, I would like to thank all of you for
coming out tonight, providing us your testimony on the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget
as proposed by Mayor Tavares. You know, we've gone out to. . .this is our fourth
community that we've gone to, and every community that we go to, you know,
we end up this meeting or our meetings at about this time, 10 o'clock or 10:30.
So there are a lot of concerns out there and, and people are coming out to testify
in regards to supporting the nonprofits as well as supporting sever..., the
departments that provide services to this County.
So, again, from the Committee Members and myself, we thank you for being here
tonight at Mitchell Pauole Community Center. So, Members, any announcements
or anything like that? I know you guys all anxious to go take a bath.
AUDIENCE: . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: JAJ)
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the meeting of the Budget and Finance Committee here on

Molokai is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
ADJOURN: 10:02 p.m.
APPROVED:

JOS ' H 0 TANILLA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
bf:min:100329-Molokai
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